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Item 5 - Other Eventsand Required FD Disclosure

On May 15, 2003, Watts Industries, Inc. (the "Comyiaissued a press release announcing the corplefia private placement of $125
million of senior unsecured notes consisting of $tllion principal amount of 4.87% Senior Notes &840 and $75 million principal
amount of 5.47% Senior Notes due 2013 (the "Notd3i§ press release is attached as Exhibit 9aHig@eport and is incorporated by
reference herein.

The net proceeds from the private placement willded to repay in full the Company's $75 milliompipal amount of 8 3/8% Notes due
December 2003 and to repay approximately $30 milliotstanding under the Company's senior crediitfacrhe balance of the net proce:
will be used for general corporate purposes.

Interest on the Notes is payable semi-annually. ftrehase agreement with respect to the Notesdasloperational and financial covenants
with which the Company is required to comply, irthg, among others, maintenance of certain findmataos and restrictions on additional
indebtedness, liens and investments. Events otilefader the purchase agreement include the &attucomply with the operational and
financial covenants, as well as bankruptcy andratifswlvency events.

The Notes were offered and sold only to institugidnvestors. The Notes have not been registerddrihe Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, or any state securities laws, and malgenoffered or sold in the United States absenstedion or an applicable exemption from
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and afigiicstate securities laws, except under circumstandere neither such registration nor
such an exemption is required by law.

Item 7 - Financial Statements, Pro Forma Financial Information and Exhibits

(c) Exhibits

4.1 Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 18,2imong Watts Industries, Inc, and the purchassrsad therein.
4.2 Form of 4.87% Senior Note due 2010

4.3 Form of 5.47% Senior Note due 2013

99.1 Press release of Watts Industries, Inc., ddid15, 2003



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly causeddiport to be signed on its behalf by
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: May 15, 2003 By: /s/ WIlliamC. MCartney
WIlliam C MCartney
Chi ef Financial Oficer, Treasurer
and Secretary



Exhibit Index
4.1 Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of May X8,20mong Watts Industries, Inc, and the purchasarsed therein.
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99.1 Press release of Watts Industries, Inc., ddigd15, 2003



Exhibit 4.1

WATTSINDUSTRIES, INC.
$125,000,000 Senior Notes

$50,000,000 4.87% Senior Notes, Series A, due Nsay 10 $75,000,000 5.47% Senior Notes, Seriesi8Mhy 15, 2013

NOTE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

Dated as of May 15, 2003

SERIES A PPN: 942749 A* 3
SERIESB PPN: 942749 A@ 1
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WATTSINDUSTRIES, INC.
815 Chestnut Street
North Andover, MA 01845
(978) 688-1811
Fax: (978) 794-1848

$125,000,000 Senior Notes
$50,000,000 4.87% Senior Notes, Series A, due Nsay @10 $75,000,000 5.47% Senior Notes, Seriesi8Mhy 15, 2013
Dated as of May 15, 2003

TO EACH OF THE PURCHASERSLISTED IN
THE ATTACHED SCHEDULE A:

Ladies and Gentlemen:
WATTS INDUSTRIES, INC., a Delaware corporation (tt@zompany"), agrees with you as follows:
1. AUTHORIZATION OF NOTES.

The Company has authorized the issue and sale2&@10,000 aggregate principal amount of its SeNmies consisting of $50,000,000
aggregate principal amount of its 4.87% Senior BldBeries A, due May 15, 2010 (the "Series A Ngtasti $75,000,000 aggregate principal
amount of its 5.47% Senior Notes, Series B, due May2013 (the "Series B Notes" and, collectivelthwhe Series A Notes the "Notes",
such term to include any such notes issued in sutish therefor pursuant to Section 13 of this égment). The Notes shall be substantially
in the forms set out in Exhibits 1(a) and 1(b),hstich changes therefrom, if any, as may be apgroysgou and the Company. Certain
capitalized terms used in this Agreement are ddfineSchedule B; references to a "Schedule" oreahibit" are, unless otherwise specified,
to a Schedule or an Exhibit attached to this Agre@m

2. SALE AND PURCHASE OF NOTES.

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agresmtiie Company will issue and sell to you and ezdhe other purchasers named in
Schedule A (the "Other Purchasers"), and you aadther Purchasers will purchase from the Compatrhe Closing provided for in
Section 3, Notes in the principal amount and sesesified opposite your names in Schedule A apthvehase price of 100% of the principal
amount thereof. Your obligation hereunder and thliegations of the Other Purchasers are severahahgbint obligations an



you shall have no liability to any Person for tlegfprmance or nc-performance by any Other Purchaser hereunder.
3. CLOSING.

The sale and purchase of the Notes to be purchmsgdu and the Other Purchasers shall occur atffiees of Gardner Carton & Douglas
LLC, 191 N. Wacker Drive, Suite 3700, Chicagonidlis 60606 at 9:00 a.m., Chicago time, at a clogimg "Closing") on May 15, 2003 or on
such other Business Day thereafter on or prior &y 800, 2003 as may be agreed upon by the Compahyanand the Other Purchasers. At
the Closing the Company will deliver to you the Bto be purchased by you in the form of a singlteNor such greater number of Notes in
denominations of at least $100,000 as you may stjjdated the date of the Closing and registergaim name (or in the name of your
nominee), against delivery by you to the Companiysoorder of immediately available funds in thecamt of the purchase price therefor by
wire transfer of immediately available funds foe iccount of the Company to account number 94231%86Fleet National Bank, 100
Federal Street, Boston, MA 02110, ABA No. 011-0@8.1f at the Closing the Company fails to tendertsNotes to you as provided above
in this Section 3, or any of the conditions specifin Section 4 shall not have been fulfilled taiysatisfaction, you shall, at your election, be
relieved of all further obligations under this Agneent, without thereby waiving any rights you mayd by reason of such failure or such
nonfulfillment.

4. CONDITIONS TO CLOSING.

Your obligation to purchase and pay for the Noteké sold to you at the Closing is subject to thfiliment to your satisfaction, prior to or at
the Closing, of the following conditions:

4.1. Representations and Warranties.
The representations and warranties of the Compathis Agreement shall be correct when made atiteaime of the Closing.
4.2. Performance; No Default.

The Company shall have performed and complied alltagreements and conditions contained in thiseAgrent required to be performed or
complied with by it prior to or at the Closing aafter giving effect to the issue and sale of thégNdand the application of the proceeds
thereof as contemplated by Section 5.14) no Detauivent of Default shall have occurred and bdinaing. Neither the Company nor any
Subsidiary shall have entered into any transacioce the date of the Memorandum that would haes Ipeohibited by

Section 10 had such Section applied since such date



4.3. Compliance Certificates.

(a) Officer's Certificate. The Company shall haeéwtred to you an Officer's Certificate, dated dage of the Closing, certifying that the
conditions specified in Sections 4.1, 4.2 and 4«@tbeen fulfilled.

(b) Secretary's Certificate. The Company shall tdelevered to you a certificate certifying as te tiesolutions attached thereto and other
corporate proceedings relating to the authorizagsecution and delivery of the Notes and the Agrex.

4.4. Opinions of Counsel.

You shall have received opinions in form and sulstssatisfactory to you, dated the date of thei@p&) from Goodwin Procter LLP,
special counsel to the Company, in the form séhfior Exhibit 4.4(a) (and the Company instructscitsinsel to deliver such opinion to you)
and (b) from Gardner Carton & Douglas LLC, your@pkcounsel in connection with such transactieudstantially in the form set forth in
Exhibit 4.4(b) and covering such other mattersdeat to such transactions as you may reasonableséq

4.5. Purchase Permitted By Applicable Law, etc.

On the date of the Closing your purchase of Ndtedl §)) be permitted by the laws and regulatiohsach jurisdiction to which you are
subject, without recourse to provisions (such agi®e 1405(a)(8) of the New York Insurance Law)miting limited investments by
insurance companies without restriction as to treracter of the particular investment, (ii) notlate any applicable law or regulation
(including, without limitation, Regulation U, T &t of the Board of Governors of the Federal Res&ystem) and (iii) not subject you to any
tax, penalty or liability under or pursuant to applicable law or regulation, which law or reguativas not in effect on the date hereof. If
requested by you, you shall have received an Officzertificate certifying as to such matters aftfas you may reasonably specify to enable
you to determine whether such purchase is so pedr

4.6. Sale of Other Notes.

Contemporaneously with the Closing the Companyl siedlito the Other Purchasers and the Other Paechahall purchase the Notes to be
purchased by them at the Closing as specified e@de A.

4.7. Payment of Special Counsel Fees.

Without limiting the provisions of Section 15.1et@ompany shall have paid on or before the Clogiadees, charges and disbursements of
your special counsel referred to in Section 4.4h&extent reflected in a statement of such cdueséered to the Company at least
Business Day prior to the Closing.



4.8. Private Placement Number.

A Private Placement Number issued by Standard &' ®@JSIP Service Bureau (in cooperation with theusities Valuation Office of the
National Association of Insurance Commissioners)ldfave been obtained by Gardner Carton & Douglds for each series of the Note

4.9. Changes in Corporate Structure.

Except as specified in Schedule 4.9, the Compaal} sbt have changed its jurisdiction of incorparator been a party to any merger or
consolidation and shall not have succeeded ta @hy substantial part of the liabilities of anjet entity, at any time following the date of
the most recent financial statements referred ®cimedule 5.5.

4.10. Proceedings and Documents.

All corporate and other proceedings in connectidth ¥he transactions contemplated by this Agreeraedtall documents and instruments
incident to such transactions shall be satisfadimgou and your special counsel, and you and gpacial counsel shall have received all ¢
counterpart originals or certified or other copiésuch documents as you or they may reasonablestq

5. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY.
The Company represents and warrants to you that:
5.1. Organization; Power and Authority.

The Company is a corporation duly organized, valeisting and in good standing under the lawgsojurisdiction of incorporation, and is
duly qualified as a foreign corporation and is @od standing in each jurisdiction in which suchliigation is required by law, other than
those jurisdictions as to which the failure to begsalified or in good standing would not, indivadly or in the aggregate, reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. The gaimy has the corporate power and authority to omrotdl under lease the properties it
purports to own or hold under lease, as describéde Memorandum, to transact the business ita@asind proposes to transact as desc
in the Memorandum, to execute and deliver this &grent and the Notes and to perform the provisienedi and thereof.

5.2. Authorization, etc.

This Agreement and the Notes have been duly augmbidy all necessary corporate action on the paneoCompany, and this Agreement
constitutes, and upon execution and delivery tHerach Note will constitute, a legal, valid andding obligation of the Company
enforceable against the Company in accordanceitsiterms, except as such enforceability may béeinby (i) applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or otherikimaws affecting the enforcement of creditorghts generally and
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(i) general principles of equity (regardless ofeter such enforceability is considered in a prdeein equity or at law).
5.3. Disclosure.

The Company, through its agent, Banc of Americauiées LLC, has delivered to you and each OthecPRaser a copy of a Confidential
Private Placement Memorandum, dated April 2003 ctvimicludes the Company's Annual Report on FornKI6r the year ended December
31, 2002 (the "Form 10-K" and, together with thenfidential Private Placement Memorandum, the "Meandum"), relating to the
transactions contemplated hereby. The Memorandiriy fescribes, in all material respects, the gaheature of the business and principal
properties of the Company and its Subsidiariesepkas disclosed in Schedule 5.3, this Agreemeeatitemorandum, the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endedch 31, 2003 (the "Form 10-Q"), the documengstificates or other writings
delivered to you by or on behalf of the Compangannection with the transactions contemplated heagldl the financial statements listed in
Schedule 5.5, taken as a whole, do not contairuatryie statement of a material fact or omit toestaty material fact necessary to make the
statements therein not misleading in light of thewmstances under which they were made. Excegisatsed in the Memorandum and the
Form 10-Q or as expressly described in Scheduleobid one of the documents, certificates or othetings identified therein, or in the
financial statements listed in Schedule 5.5, sibeeember 31, 2002, there has been no change fmémeial condition, operations, business
or properties of the Company or any Subsidiary pkchanges that individually or in the aggregat@iamot reasonably be expected to have
a Material Adverse Effect. There is no fact knowrttte Company that would reasonably be expectédvte a Material Adverse Effect that
has not been set forth herein or in the Memoranduthe Form 10-Q or in the other documents, cegtfis and other writings delivered to
you by or on behalf of the Company specifically éige in connection with the transactions conteraglaereby

5.4. Organization and Ownership of Shares of Sidusas; Affiliates.

(a) Schedule 5.4 contains (except as noted thecemplete and correct lists of: (i) the Companylbssdiaries, showing, as to each
Subsidiary, the correct name thereof, the jurigalicof its organization, whether such Subsidiarg Restricted Subsidiary and the percentage
of shares of each class of its capital stock oflamaquity interests outstanding owned by the Canypand each other Subsidiary, (ii) the
Company's Affiliates, other than Subsidiaries, éiidthe Company's directors and senior officers.

(b) All of the outstanding shares of capital stoclsimilar equity interests of each Subsidiary shawSchedule 5.4 as being owned by the
Company and its Subsidiaries have been validlyedsare fully paid and nonassessable and are olyndgte Company or another Subsidiary
free and clear of any Lien (except as otherwiselabgd in Schedule 5.4).

(c) Each Subsidiary identified in Schedule 5.4 égporation or other legal entity duly organizealidly existing and in good standing under
the laws of its



jurisdiction of organization, and is duly qualifiaed a foreign corporation or other legal entity anith good standing in each jurisdiction
which such qualification is required by law, otliesin those jurisdictions as to which the failurd#éoso qualified or in good standing would
not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonal#yelpected to have a Material Adverse Effect. Eacih Subsidiary has the corporate or ¢
power and authority to own or hold under leaseptioperties it purports to own or hold under lease @ transact the business it transacts
proposes to transact.

(d) No Subsidiary is a party to, or otherwise sabje, any legal restriction or any agreement (othan this Agreement, the agreements listed
on Schedule 5.4 and customary limitations impogeddoporate or limited partnership law statutesjrieting the ability of such Subsidiary
pay dividends out of profits or make any other &milistributions of profits to the Company or afyits Subsidiaries that owns outstanding
shares of capital stock or similar equity interegtsuch Subsidiary.

5.5. Financial Statements.

The Company has delivered to you and each Othe&hBser copies of the financial statements of thmgamy and its Subsidiaries listed on
Schedule

5.5. All of said financial statements (includingdach case the related schedules and notes) fag$ent in all material respects the
consolidated financial position of the Company aadubsidiaries as of the respective dates spedifi such Schedule and the consolidated
results of their operations and cash flows forrdspective periods so specified and have been @ jpaaccordance with GAAP consistently
applied throughout the periods involved excepteagath in the notes thereto (subject, in the adsany interim financial statements, to
normal year-end adjustments).

5.6. Compliance with Laws, Other Instruments, etc.

The execution, delivery and performance by the Congpf this Agreement and the Notes will not (intavene, result in any breach of, or
constitute a default under, or result in the coratif any Lien in respect of any property of thex@@any or any Subsidiary under, any
indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, loan, purcbaseedit agreement, lease, corporate charter -dawyg, or any other agreement or instrun
to which the Company or any Subsidiary is boundyowhich the Company or any Subsidiary or any efrthrespective properties may be
bound or affected, (ii) conflict with or result énbreach of any of the terms, conditions or provisiof any order, judgment, decree, or ruling
of any court, arbitrator or Governmental Authodiyplicable to the Company or any Subsidiary oy iblate any provision of any statute or
other rule or regulation of any Governmental Auitypiincluding, without limitation, the USA Patriétct, applicable to the Company or any
Subsidiary.

5.7. Governmental Authorizations, etc.

No consent, approval or authorization of, or ragisin, filing or declaration with, any Governmdnaithority is required in connection wi
the execution, delivery or performance by the Camypat this Agreement or the Notes.
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5.8. Litigation; Observance of Agreements, Statates Orders.

(a) Except as disclosed under the caption "BusiResduct Liability, Environmental and Other Litigat Matters" in the Form 10-K or in the
Form 10-Q, there are no actions, suits or procegsdending or, to the knowledge of the Compangatened against or affecting the
Company or any Subsidiary or any property of then@any or any Subsidiary in any court or before arbjtrator of any kind or before or by
any Governmental Authority that, individually ortime aggregate, would reasonably be expected ® &hdwaterial Adverse Effect.

(b) Except as disclosed under the caption "Bustiesduct Liability, Environmental and Other Litigat Matters" in the Form 10-K or in the
Form 10-Q, neither the Company nor any Subsidisig default under any term of any agreement drunsent to which it is a party or by
which it is bound, or any order, judgment, decresubng of any court, arbitrator or GovernmentaltAority or is in violation of any
applicable law, ordinance, rule or regulation (irtthg Environmental Laws and the USA Patriot Adtany Governmental Authority, which
default or violation, individually or in the aggr&tg, would reasonably be expected to have a Mbhtattizerse Effect.

5.9. Taxes.

The Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries fikageall tax returns that are required to haverbfled in any jurisdiction, and have paid
all taxes shown to be due and payable on suchnseturd all other taxes and assessments leviedtbponor their properties, assets, income
or franchises, to the extent such taxes and assessimave become due and payable and before theybeaome delinquent, except for the
filing of any tax returns of which the failure titef, individually or in the aggregate, would noasenably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect and except for the payment of argdaand assessments (i) the amount of which isdiidually or in the aggregate Mate!
or (ii) the amount, applicability or validity of vith is currently being contested in good faith ppm@priate proceedings and with respect to
which the Company or a consolidated Subsidiaryhagase may be, has established adequate reseacordance with GAAP. The
Company knows of no basis for any other tax orsssent that would reasonably be expected to hiiaterial Adverse Effect. The charg
accruals and reserves on the books of the Compahitsaconsolidated Subsidiaries in respect of Fdstate or other taxes for all fiscal
periods are adequate. The Federal income taxitiabibf the Company and its consolidated Subsisdnave been determined by the Internal
Revenue Service and paid for all fiscal years uanih including the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999.

5.10. Title to Property; Leases.

The Company and its Subsidiaries have good andmuff title to their respective properties thatiindually or in the aggregate are Material,
including all such properties reflected in the nrestent audited balance sheet referred to in Sebt or purported to have been acquired by
the Company or any Subsidiary after said date (@@ sold or otherwise disposed of in the ordimayrse of business), in each case free
and clear of



Liens prohibited by this Agreement. All leases tingividually or in the aggregate are Material eadid and subsisting and are in full force
and effect in all material respects.

5.11. Licenses, Permits, etc.
Except as disclosed in Schedule 5.11,

(a) the Company and its Subsidiaries own or posaéBsenses, permits, franchises, authorizatigagents, copyrights, service marks,
trademarks and trade names, or rights theretojritistidually or in the aggregate are Material,hvaitit known conflict with the rights of
others;

(b) to the best knowledge of the Company, no prbdfithe Company infringes in any material resgaut license, permit, franchise,
authorization, patent, copyright, service markgémaark, trade name or other right owned by anyrd®eeson; and

(c) to the best knowledge of the Company, thermiMaterial violation by any Person of any rightleé Company or any of its Subsidiaries
with respect to any patent, copyright, service maddemark, trade name or other right owned od bsethe Company or any of its
Subsidiaries.

5.12. Compliance with ERISA.

(a) The Company and each ERISA Affiliate have ofset@and administered each Plan in compliance Migpalicable laws except for such
instances of noncompliance as have not resultaddnvould not reasonably be expected to resultMaterial Adverse Effect. Neither the
Company nor any ERISA Affiliate has incurred arabiliity pursuant to Title | or IV of ERISA or theepalty or excise tax provisions of the
Code relating to employee benefit plans (as definékection 3 of ERISA), and no event, transactipnondition has occurred or exists that
would reasonably be expected to result in the ietuge of any such liability by the Company or alRIEA Affiliate, or in the imposition of
any Lien on any of the rights, properties or aseéthe Company or any ERISA Affiliate, in eithease pursuant to Title | or IV of ERISA or
to such penalty or excise tax provisions or to i8act01(a)(29) or 412 of the Code, other than Siatdilities or Liens as would not be
individually or in the aggregate Material.

(b) The amount (determined under GAAP) by whichgresent value of the aggregate benefit liabilitieder each of the Plans (other than
Multiemployer Plans), determined as of the enduchsPlan's most recently ended plan year on this bathe actuarial assumptions specil
for funding purposes in such Plan's most receniaaict! valuation report, exceeded the aggregatetivalue of the assets of such Plan
allocable to such benefit liabilities is disclosedhe notes to financial statements accompanyirgniost recent audited financial statements
of the Company listed on Schedule 5.5. The termnébtliabilities”" has the meaning specified in ts&c 4001 of ERISA and the terms
“current value" and "present value" have the magasapecified in section 3 of ERISA.
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(c) The Company and its ERISA Affiliates have muturred withdrawal liabilities (and are not subjectontingent withdrawal liabilities)
under section 4201 or 4204 of ERISA in respect aftdmployer Plans that individually or in the aggate are Material.

(d) The expected postretirement benefit obligatietermined as of the last day of the Company's nesgntly ended fiscal year in
accordance with Financial Accounting Standards 8&iatement No. 106, without regard to liabiliteégibutable to continuation coverage
mandated by section 4980B of the Code) of the Copnpad its Subsidiaries is not Material.

(e) The execution and delivery of this Agreement tire issuance and sale of the Notes hereundenatilhvolve any transaction that is
subject to the prohibitions of section 406 of ERI&AN connection with which a tax could be impogedsuant to section 4975(c)(1)(A)-(D)
of the Code. The representation by the Companlyérfitst sentence of this

Section 5.12(e) is made in reliance upon and stilij@be accuracy of your representation in Sedi@as to the sources of the funds used to
pay the purchase price of the Notes to be purchaggdu.

5.13. Private Offering by the Company.

Neither the Company nor anyone acting on its befedfoffered the Notes or any similar securitieséde to, or solicited any offer to buy &
of the same from, or otherwise approached or naggatiin respect thereof with, any person other fltanand the Other Purchasers and not
more than 50 other Institutional Investors, eactvioich has been offered the Notes at a privatefeali@vestment. Neither the Company nor
anyone acting on its behalf has taken, or will fa® action that would subject the issuance @ sithe Notes to the registration
requirements of Section 5 of the Securities Act.

5.14. Use of Proceeds; Margin Regulations.

The Company will apply the proceeds of the salthefNotes to refinance Debt of the Company asostt in Schedule 5.14 and for general
corporate purposes. No part of the proceeds frensdle of the Notes will be used, directly or indtty, for the purpose of buying or carrying
any margin stock within the meaning of Regulationfhe Board of Governors of the Federal Resepste (12 CFR 221), or for the
purpose of buying or carrying or trading in anywsétes under such circumstances as to involveCimpany in a violation of Regulation X
of said Board (12 CFR 224) or to involve any bro&edealer in a violation of Regulation T of saida®d (12 CFR 220). Margin stock does
not constitute more than 1% of the value of thesotidated assets of the Company and its Subsidiarid the Company does not have any
present intention that margin stock will constitatere than 1% of the value of such assets. As institils Section, the terms "margin stock”
and "purpose of buying or carrying" shall have ieanings assigned to them in said Regulation U.
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5.15. Existing Debt; Future Liens.

(a) Except as described therein, Schedule 5.15a@isa complete and correct list of all outstamdDebt of the Company and its Subsidia
as of March 31, 2003, since which date there has be Material change in the amounts, interessyaiaking funds, installment payments
maturities of the Debt of the Company or its Suiasids. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary idéfault and no waiver of default is
currently in effect, in the payment of any prindipainterest on any Debt of the Company or sucbs&liary and no event or condition exists
with respect to any Debt of the Company or any ®lidny that would permit (or that with notice oethlapse of time, or both, would permit)
one or more Persons to cause such Debt to becoenandupayable before its stated maturity or befsneegularly scheduled dates of
payment.

(b) Except as disclosed in Schedule 5.15, neitteeCompany nor any Subsidiary has agreed or cagtsémicause or permit in the future
(upon the happening of a contingency or otherwasg)of its property, whether now owned or hereaitzuired, to be subject to a Lien not
permitted by Section 10.3.

5.16. Foreign Assets Control Regulations, Anti-daam Order, etc.

Neither the sale of the Notes by the Company heteunor its use of the proceeds thereof will vielg) the Trading with the Enemy Act,
amended, (b) any of the foreign assets controllatigns of the United States Treasury DepartmehtdBR, Subtitle B, Chapter V, as
amended) or any enabling legislation or executideorelating thereto or (c) to the knowledge & @ompany, the Anti-Terrorism Order.
Without limiting the foregoing, neither the Compamyr any Subsidiary (i) is a blocked person desctilm Section 1 of the Anti-Terrorism
Order or (ii) engages in any dealings or transastior is otherwise associated, with any such perso

5.17. Status under Certain Statutes.

Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary is subjecegulation under the Investment Company Act efdl%s amended, the Public Util
Holding Company Act of 1935, as amended, the ItaegsCommerce Act, as amended by the ICC Termimdta, as amended, or the
Federal Power Act, as amended.

5.18. Environmental Matters.

Except as disclosed under the caption "BusinesdtRtd iability, Environmental and Other Litigatidnatters” in the Form 10-K or in the
Form 10-Q, neither the Company nor any Subsidias/kmowledge of any claim or has received any aafany claim, and no proceeding
has been instituted raising any claim against th@any or any of its Subsidiaries or any of thegpective real properties now or formerly
owned, leased or operated by any of them or otb&sts, alleging any damage to the environmentatation of any Environmental Laws,
except, in each case, such as would not reasobal#ypected to result in a Material Adverse EffEgcept as disclosed in the Form 10-K or
the Form 10-Q,
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(a) neither the Company nor any Subsidiary has kedge of any facts which would give rise to anyralgpublic or private, of violation of
Environmental Laws or damage to the environmentratiigg from, occurring on or in any way relateddal properties now or formerly
owned, leased or operated by any of them or tor@tbsets or their use, except, in each case, susbuad not reasonably be expected to
result in a Material Adverse Effect;

(b) neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiahi@s stored any Hazardous Materials on real priegarbw or formerly owned, leased or
operated by any of them or disposed of any Hazarditaterials in a manner contrary to any Environrakebaws in each case in any manner
that would reasonably be expected to result in sehtd Adverse Effect; and

(c) all buildings on all real properties now ownbzhsed or operated by the Company or any of ibsiliaries are in compliance with
applicable Environmental Laws, except where faitareomply would not reasonably be expected tolrésa Material Adverse Effect.

6. REPRESENTATIONS OF THE PURCHASERS.
6.1. Purchase for Investment.

You represent that you are purchasing the Notegdor own account or for one or more separate agdsaunaintained by you or for the
account of one or more pension or trust funds adwvith a view to the distribution thereof, provitithat the disposition of your or their
property shall at all times be within your or theamtrol. You understand that the Notes have nehbegistered under the Securities Act and
may be resold only if registered pursuant to thevigions of the Securities Act or if an exemptioonfi registration is available, except under
circumstances where neither such registration mcin an exemption is required by law, and that the@any is not required to register the
Notes.

6.2. Source of Funds.

You represent that at least one of the followirsdeshents is an accurate representation as to eaotesof funds (a "Source") to be used by
you to pay the purchase price of the Notes to welased by you hereund

(a) the Source is an "insurance company generauatt(as the term is defined in the United St&epartment of Labor's Prohibited
Transaction Exemption ("PTE") 95-60) in respectvbfch the reserves and liabilities (as definedh®yannual statement for life insurance
companies approved by the National Associatiomstifance Commissioners (the "NAIC Annual Statendat'the general account contract
(s) held by or on behalf of any employee benefingbgether with the amount of the reserves atditias for the general account contract(s)
held by or on behalf of any other employee bemdfihs maintained by the same employer (or affiliatgeof as defined in PTE 95-60) or by
the same employee organization in the general atchm
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not exceed 10% of the total reserves and lialslitiethe general account (exclusive of separateuatdiabilities) plus surplus as set forth in
the NAIC Annual Statement filed with such Purchasstate of domicile; or

(b) the Source is a separate account that is niadéataolely in connection with such Purchaser'sdigontractual obligations under which the
amounts payable, or credited, to any employee kigriah (or its related trust) that has any intenresuch separate account (or to any
participant or beneficiary of such plan (includimgy annuitant)) are not affected in any mannembyirtvestment performance of the separate
account; or

(c) the Source is either (i) an insurance compamlqul separate account, within the meaning of P04 @issued January 29, 1990), or (ii) a

bank collective investment fund, within the meanifid® TE 91-38 (issued July 12, 1991) and, excepbashave disclosed to the Company in
writing pursuant to this paragraph (c), no emplolyeeefit plan or group of plans maintained by ts employer or employee organization
beneficially owns more than 10% of all assets alled to such pooled separate account or colleittiresstment fund; or

(d) the Source constitutes assets of an "investfoendt' (within the meaning of Part V of PTE 84-(the "QPAM Exemption")) managed b
"qualified professional asset manager" or "QPAMItitim the meaning of Part V of the QPAM Exemptiond, employee benefit plan's assets
that are included in such investment fund, whenlioed with the assets of all other employee bepédits established or maintained by the
same employer or by an affiliate (within the megnarfi Section V(c)(1) of the QPAM Exemption) of summployer or by the same employee
organization and managed by such QPAM, exceed Zakedotal client assets managed by such QPAMcdmglitions of Part I(c) and (g) of
the QPAM Exemption are satisfied, neither the QP#Ad a person controlling or controlled by the QPAdpplying the definition of

"control" in Section V(e) of the QPAM Exemption) o&a 5% or more interest in the Company and (i)dbetity of such QPAM and (ii) the
names of all employee benefit plans whose assetsieuded in such investment fund have been discldo the Company in writing pursu

to this clause (d); or

(e) the Source constitutes assets of a "plan(gjhifwthe meaning of Section 1V of PTE 96-23 (thRMAM Exemption™)) managed by an
"in-house asset manager" or "INHAM" (within the mawy of Part IV of the INHAM exemption), the conidits of Part I(a), (g) and (h) of the
INHAM Exemption are satisfied, neither the INHAMmea person controlling or controlled by the INHAIslpplying the definition of

"control" in Section 1V(h) of the INHAM Exemptiorgwns a 5% or more interest in the Company andh@)dentity of such INHAM and (ii)
the name(s) of the employee benefit plan(s) wheseta constitute the Source have been disclogbd tbompany in writing pursuant to this
clause (e); or

(f) the Source is a governmental plan; or
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(9) the Source is one or more employee benefitsplana separate account or trust fund compriseth@for more employee benefit plans,
each of which has been identified to the Companyriting pursuant to this paragraph (g); or

(h) the Source does not include assets of any grplbenefit plan, other than a plan exempt fronttheerage of ERISA.

As used in this Section 6.2, the terms "employeeefieplan”, "governmental plan" and "separate aotbshall have the respective meanings
assigned to such terms in Section 3 of ERISA.

7. INFORMATION AS TO COMPANY.
7.1. Financial and Business Information
The Company will deliver to each holder of Noteattis an Institutional Investor:

(a) Quarterly Statements -- within 60 days afteréhd of each quarterly fiscal period in each figear of the Company (other than the last
quarterly fiscal period of each such fiscal yeduplicate copies of,

(i) consolidated balance sheet of the Company @n8lbsidiaries as at the end of such quarter,

(i) consolidated statements of income of the Comypend its Subsidiaries for such quarter and (@ddise of the second and third quarters)
for the portion of the fiscal year ending with supharter, and

(iii) consolidated statements of cash flows of @@mpany and its Subsidiaries for such quarterroth@ case of the second and third quarters)
for the portion of the fiscal year ending with supharter,

setting forth in each case in comparative formfitperes for the corresponding periods in the prasifiscal year, all in reasonable detail,
prepared in accordance with GAAP applicable to tulrfinancial statements generally, and certitigda Senior Financial Officer as fairly
presenting, in all material respects, the finang@aition of the companies being reported on aeif tlesults of operations and cash flows,
subject to changes resulting from year-end adjustsn@rovided that delivery within the time perigecified above of copies of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q preparambimpliance with the requirements therefor andifildth the Securities and Exchange
Commission shall be deemed to satisfy the requinésnef this Section 7.1(a);

(b) Annual Statements -- within 105 days afterehd of each fiscal year of the Company, duplicafges of,
(i) consolidated balance sheet of the Company @n8lbsidiaries, as at the end of such year, and
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(i) consolidated statements of income, changeshareholders' equity and cash flows of the Comanayits Subsidiaries, for such year,

setting forth in each case in comparative formfidperes for the previous fiscal year, all in reasble detail, prepared in accordance with
GAAP, and accompanied by an opinion of independertified public accountants of recognized nati@tahding, which opinion shall state
that such financial statements present fairly [limaterial respects, the financial position of ttenpanies being reported upon and their
results of operations and cash flows and have pesgrared in conformity with GAAP, and that the ekaation of such accountants in
connection with such financial statements has Ipegte in accordance with generally accepted audstimgdards, and that such audit
provides a reasonable basis for such opinion ircitttemstances, provided that the delivery witthia time period specified above of the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for such figear (together with the Company's annual regoghiareholders, if any, prepared
pursuant to Rule 14a-3 under the Exchange Act)gueghin accordance with the requirements therefdifiled with the Securities and
Exchange Commission shall be deemed to satisfyetipgirements of this Section 7.1(b);

(c) Unrestricted Subsidiaries -- if, at the timedefivery of any financial statements pursuanteott®n 7.1(a) or (b), Unrestricted Subsidiaries
account for more than 10% of (i) the consolidatadltassets of the Company and its Subsidiariésctefl in the balance sheet included in
such financial statements or (ii) the consolidatacgnues of the Company and its Subsidiaries tefieio the consolidated statement of
income included in such financial statements, aaudited balance sheet for all Unrestricted Subgetidgaken as whole as at the end of the
fiscal period included in such financial statemeartd the related unaudited statements of incoraekisblders' equity and cash flows for such
Unrestricted Subsidiaries for such period, togettiér consolidating statements reflecting all efiations or adjustments necessary to
reconcile such group financial statements to thmsaclidated financial statements of the Companyisn8ubsidiaries shall be delivered
together with the financial statements requiredspant to Sections 7.1(a) and (b);

(d) SEC and Other Reports -- promptly upon theaopeing available, one copy of (i) each financiaksment, report, notice or proxy
statement sent by the Company or any Restrictedi@aby to public securities holders generally, &ifjdeach regular or periodic report, each
registration statement other than registratiorestants on Form S-8 (without exhibits except asesgly requested by such holder), and each
prospectus and all amendments thereto filed by’ tirapany or any Restricted Subsidiary with the Séearand Exchange Commission and
of all press releases and other statements madeldeayenerally by the Company or any Restrictadsiliary to the public concerning
developments that are Material,

(e) Notice of Default or Event of Default -- proryptand in any event within five Business Days iaftdResponsible Officer becoming aware
of the existence of any Default or Event of Defaulthat any Person has given any notice or takgraation with respect to a claimed def:
hereunder or that any Person has given noticekentany action with respect to a claimed defautheftype referred to in Section 11(f), a
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written notice specifying the nature and perio@xittence thereof and what action the Companykiadeor proposes to take with respect
thereto;

() ERISA Matters -- promptly, and in any event it five Business Days after a Responsible Offlroming aware of any of the
following, a written notice setting forth the naguhereof and the action, if any, that the Compamgn ERISA Affiliate proposes to take with
respect thereto:

(i) with respect to any Plan, any reportable evastlefined in section 4043(b) of ERISA and theilaipns thereunder, for which notice
thereof has not been waived pursuant to such régudaas in effect on the date hereof; or

(i) the taking by the PBGC of steps to institutethe threatening by the PBGC of the institutibnpooceedings under section 4042 of ERISA
for the termination of, or the appointment of astag¢ to administer, any Plan, or the receipt byGbmpany or any ERISA Affiliate of a noti
from a Multiemployer Plan that such action has baé&en by the PBGC with respect to such Multiemptdylan; or

(i) any event, transaction or condition that webuésult in the incurrence of any liability by tGempany or any ERISA Affiliate pursuant to
Title | or IV of ERISA or the penalty or excise tprovisions of the Code relating to employee bengéins, or in the imposition of any Lien
on any of the rights, properties or assets of the@any or any ERISA Affiliate pursuant to Titled kv of ERISA or such penalty or excise
tax provisions, if such liability or Lien, takengether with any other such liabilities or Liensrihexisting, would reasonably be expected to
have a Material Adverse Effect;

(9) Notices from Governmental Authority -- prompthnd in any event within 30 days of receipt théreopies of any notice to the Company
or any Subsidiary from any Federal or state Govemtal Authority relating to any order, ruling, sit or other law or regulation that would
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adveifeetzand

(h) Requested Information -- with reasonable prarags, such other data and information relatinediusiness, operations, affairs, financial
condition, assets or properties of the Companyngrad its Subsidiaries or relating to the abiliiyitbe Company to perform its obligations
hereunder and under the Notes as from time to tirag be reasonably requested by any such holdeotasN

7.2. Officer's Certificate.

Each set of financial statements delivered to ddrobf Notes pursuant to Section 7.1(a) or (b)ldfeabhccompanied by a certificate of a Se
Financial Officer setting forth:
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(a) Covenant Compliance -- the information (inchgddetailed calculations) required in order to lelsth whether the Company was in
compliance with the requirements of Section 10rtugh Section 10.8, inclusive, during the quarteriannual period covered by the
statements then being furnished (including witlpees to each such Section, where applicable, tleellaéions of the maximum or minimum
amount, ratio or percentage, as the case may bmjgsible under the terms of such Sections, anddhamulation of the amount, ratio or
percentage then in existence); and

(b) Event of Default -- a statement that such efficas reviewed the relevant terms hereof and laae nor caused to be made, under his or
her supervision, a review of the transactions amdiitions of the Company and its Subsidiaries ftbmbeginning of the quarterly or annual
period covered by the statements then being fuedish the date of the certificate and that suckereghall not have disclosed the existence
during such period of any condition or event thatstitutes a Default or an Event of Default ognfy such condition or event existed or ex
(including any such event or condition resultingnfrthe failure of the Company or any Subsidiargamply with any Environmental Law),
specifying the nature and period of existence thfeaad what action the Company shall have takgmraposes to take with respect thereto.

7.3. Inspection.
The Company will permit the representatives of damlder of Notes that is an Institutional Investor:

(a) No Default -- if no Default or Event of Defatitten exists, at the expense of such holder and tgasonable prior notice to the Company,
to visit the principal executive office of the Coamy, to discuss the affairs, finances and accafrttee Company and its Subsidiaries with
Company's officers, and (with the consent of then@any, which consent will not be unreasonably wetthits independent public
accountants, and (with the consent of the Compahich consent will not be unreasonably withheldyigit the other offices and properties
of the Company and each Restricted Subsidiargtalich reasonable times and as often as may enadaly requested in writing; and

(b) Default -- if a Default or Event of Default thexists, at the expense of the Company, to uigltiaspect any of the offices or properties of
the Company or any Subsidiary, to examine all trespective books of account, records, reportsotimer papers, to make copies and exti
therefrom, and to discuss their respective afffimances, and accounts with their respective effiand independent public accountants (and
by this provision the Company authorizes said actamis to discuss the affairs, finances and aceafrthe Company and its Subsidiaries),
all at such times and as often as may be requested.
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8. PREPAYMENT OF THE NOTES.

8.1. No Scheduled Prepayments.

No regularly scheduled prepayments are due on thes\prior to their stated maturi
8.2. Optional Prepayments with Make-Whole Amount .

The Company may, at its option, upon notice asigeml/below, prepay at any time all, or from timeitoe any part of, Notes in an amount
not less than $1,000,000 in the aggregate in the cha partial prepayment, at 100% of the prin@paount so prepaid, plus the Makéiole
Amount determined for the prepayment date with@esp such principal amount. The Company will ghaeh holder of Notes written noti
of each optional prepayment under this

Section 8.2 not less than 30 days and not more@fatays prior to the date fixed for such prepaytrigach such notice shall specify such
date, the aggregate principal amount of the Naté®tprepaid on such date, the principal amourtioh Note held by such holder to be
prepaid (determined in accordance with Section, &:3) the interest to be paid on the prepaymestwldh respect to such principal amount
being prepaid, and shall be accompanied by a icaitgf of a Senior Financial Officer as to the eated Make-Whole Amount due in
connection with such prepayment (calculated dseifdate of such notice were the date of the prepat)setting forth the details of such
computation. Two Business Days prior to such prepay, the Company shall deliver to each holder aieN a certificate of a Senior
Financial Officer specifying the calculation of fudake-Whole Amount as of the specified prepayndaie.

8.3. Allocation of Partial Prepayments.

In the case of each partial prepayment of Notess#ries pursuant to this Section 8, the prin@pabunt of the Notes of the series to be
prepaid shall be allocated among all of the Nofesioh series at the time outstanding in proportaanearly as practicable, to the respective
unpaid principal amounts thereof not theretofolkeddor prepayment.

8.4. Maturity; Surrender, etc.

In the case of each prepayment of Notes pursuahtd&ection 8, the principal amount of each Notbe prepaid shall mature and become
due and payable on the date fixed for such prepayrtegether with interest on such principal amaagtdrued to such date and the applicable
Make-Whole Amount, if any. From and after such datdess the Company shall fail to pay such prialcgmount when so due and payable,
together with the interest and MakW¢hole Amount, if any, as aforesaid, interest orhguiincipal amount shall cease to accrue. Any aid

or prepaid in full shall be surrendered to the Canypand canceled and shall not be reissued, ahtbteoshall be issued in lieu of any preg
principal amount of any Note.
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8.5. Purchase of Notes.

The Company will not and will not permit any Affilie to purchase, redeem, prepay or otherwise aggliiectly or indirectly, any of the
outstanding Notes except upon the payment or prepaiof the Notes in accordance with the term$igfAgreement and the Notes. The
Company will promptly cancel all Notes acquireditgr any Affiliate pursuant to any payment, prepeant or purchase of Notes pursuant to
any provision of this Agreement and no Notes maisbeed in substitution or exchange for any sucteslo

8.6. Make-Whole Amount.

The term "Make-Whole Amount" means, with respecryg Note, an amount equal to the excess, if ajpeoDiscounted Value of the
Remaining Scheduled Payments with respect to tliedCRrincipal of such Note over the amount of sGeitled Principal, provided that the
Make-Whole Amount may in no event be less than.Zeoo the purposes of determining the Make-WholeoAnt, the following terms have
the following meanings:

"Called Principal" means, with respect to any Ntte, principal of such Note that is to be prepaigspant to Section 8.2 or has become or is
declared to be immediately due and payable purdog®ection 12.1, as the context requires.

"Discounted Value" means, with respect to the Caencipal of any Note, the amount obtained bygalisiting all Remaining Scheduled
Payments with respect to such Called Principal fthair respective scheduled due dates to the 8edtieDate with respect to such Called
Principal, in accordance with accepted financiakfice and at a discount factor (applied on theespemiodic basis as that on which interest
on the Notes is payable) equal to the Reinvestvmid with respect to such Called Principal.

"Reinvestment Yield" means, with respect to thdegiPrincipal of any Note, .50% over the yield tatority implied by (i) the yields

reported, as of 10:00 A.M. (New York City time) the second Business Day preceding the Settlementwlith respect to such Called
Principal, on the display designated as the "PX®&t' on the Bloomberg Financial Market Servicesfarh other display as may replace the
PX1 Screen on Bloomberg Financial Market Servioepttively traded U.S. Treasury securities hawmgaturity equal to the Remaining
Average Life of such Called Principal as of sucktl8ment Date, or (i) if such yields are not refeoras of such time or the yields reported as
of such time are not ascertainable, the Treasunstaot Maturity Series Yields reported, for thestday for which such yields have been so
reported as of the second Business Day precedin§ettlement Date with respect to such Called ahcin Federal Reserve Statistical
Release H.15 (519) (or any comparable successdicatiin) for actively traded U.S. Treasury sedasthaving a constant maturity equal to
the Remaining Average Life of such Called Princgslof such Settlement Date. Such implied yield lméldetermined, if necessary, by (a)
converting U.S. Treasury bill quotations to bondxgglent yields in accordance with accepted finahgractice and (b) interpolating linearly
between (1) the actively traded U.S. Treasury s$gcwith the maturity closest to and greater tham Remaining
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Average Life and (2) the actively traded U.S. Tuegsecurity with the maturity closest to and |#smn the Remaining Average Life.

"Remaining Average Life" means, with respect to @ajled Principal, the number of years (calculdatethe nearest one-twelfth year)
obtained by dividing (i) such Called Principal ir{td the sum of the products obtained by multiptyi(a) the principal component of each
Remaining Scheduled Payment with respect to sutledCArincipal by (b) the number of years (calcedato the nearest ornerelfth year) tha
will elapse between the Settlement Date with resfmesuch Called Principal and the scheduled dte afssuch Remaining Scheduled
Payment.

"Remaining Scheduled Payments" means, with respaht Called Principal of any Note, all paymerftsuch Called Principal and interest
thereon that would be due after the Settlement @dterespect to such Called Principal if no payinafrsuch Called Principal were made
prior to its scheduled due date, provided thatidhsSettlement Date is not a date on which intgraginents are due to be made under the
terms of the Notes, then the amount of the nexterding scheduled interest payment will be redbgeithe amount of interest accrued to
such Settlement Date and required to be paid om Settlement Date pursuant to Section 8.2 or 12.1.

"Settlement Date" means, with respect to the Catealcipal of any Note, the date on which such &hPrincipal is to be prepaid pursuant to
Section 8.2 or has become or is declared to be diatedy due and payable pursuant to Section 18.fhecontext requires.

9. AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS.
The Company covenants that so long as any of thesNwe outstanding:
9.1. Compliance with Law.

The Company will, and will cause each Subsidiaryctomply with all laws, ordinances or governmentéés or regulations to which each of
them is subject, including, without limitation, Eranmental Laws, and will obtain and maintain ifeef all licenses, certificates, permits,
franchises and other governmental authorizatiossssary to the ownership of their respective ptogseor to the conduct of their respective
businesses, in each case to the extent necessamguce that non-compliance with such laws, ordiearor governmental rules or regulations
or failures to obtain or maintain in effect sudatehses, certificates, permits, franchises and gftreernmental authorizations would not,
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably beeexgd to have a Material Adverse Effect.

9.2. Insurance.

The Company will, and will cause each Restrictedsgliary to, maintain, with financially sound areputable insurers, insurance with
respect to their respective properties and busiisesgainst such casualties and contingenciescbftgpes, on such terms and in such
amounts (including deductibles, co-insurance affdrsgurance, if adequate reserves are
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maintained with respect thereto) as is customathiércase of entities of established reputatiogaged in the same or a similar business and
similarly situated.

9.3. Maintenance of Properties.

The Company will and will cause each Restricteds®liiry to maintain and keep, or cause to be miaietband kept, their respective
properties in good repair, working order and candi{other than ordinary wear and tear), so thatahsiness carried on in connection
therewith may be properly conducted at all timesyjoled that this Section shall not prevent the @any or any Restricted Subsidiary from
discontinuing the operation and the maintenan@ngfof its properties if such discontinuance isrdéde in the conduct of its business and
the Company has concluded that such discontinuanoé not, individually or in the aggregate, reasloly be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect.

9.4. Payment of Taxes and Claims.

The Company will, and will cause each Subsidiaryite all income tax or similar tax returns reagdrto be filed in any jurisdiction and to
and discharge all taxes shown to be due and pagatdech returns and all other taxes, assessngavisinmental charges, or levies imposed
on them or any of their properties, assets, inconfeanchises, to the extent such taxes and assessimave become due and payable and
before they have become delinquent and all claoms/hich sums have become due and payable thatdrangght become a Lien on
properties or assets of the Company or any Subgjdieovided that neither the Company nor any Siiasjy need pay any such tax or
assessment or claims if (i) the amount, applicgbdi validity thereof is contested by the Companguch Subsidiary on a timely basis in
good faith and in appropriate proceedings, andCtvapany or a Subsidiary has established adequseeves therefor in accordance with
GAAP on the books of the Company or such Subsidiari) the nonpayment of all such taxes and assests in the aggregate would not
reasonably be expected to have a Material AdveifeetE

9.5. Corporate Existence, etc.

The Company will at all times preserve and keefuliforce and effect its corporate existence. 8abjo Sections 10.4 and 10.5, the
Company will at all times preserve and keep infiote and effect the corporate existence of edds ®estricted Subsidiaries (unless
merged into the Company or a Restricted Subsidemg)all rights and franchises of the Company &mRestricted Subsidiaries unless, in the
good faith judgment of the Company, the terminatbor failure to preserve and keep in full forewlaffect such corporate existence, right
or franchise would not, individually or in the aggate, have a Material Adverse Effect.

10. NEGATIVE COVENANTS.
The Company covenants that so long as any of thesNwe outstanding:
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10.1. Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio.

The Company will not permit the ratio of Consoleldincome Available for Fixed Charges to Consoéiddtixed Charges (in each case for
the Company's then most recently completed foeafiguarters) to be less than 2.00 to 1.00 at iamg. t

10.2. Priority Debt.
The Company will not permit Priority Debt to excesl of Adjusted Consolidated Net Worth at any time.
10.3. Liens.

The Company will not, and will not permit any Rédrd Subsidiary to, permit to exist, create, assomincur, directly or indirectly, any Lie
on its properties or assets, whether now ownecaditer acquired (unless it makes, or causes toduke, effective provision whereby the
Notes will be equally and ratably secured with anyg all other obligations thereby secured, suchriéigdo be pursuant to an agreemen
agreements reasonably satisfactory to the Reqticdders), except:

(a) Liens for taxes, assessments or governmendiagjel not then due and delinquent or the nonpayafavhich is permitted by Section 9.4;

(b) Liens incidental to the conduct of businestherownership of properties and assets (includinglbrds', lessors', carriers’,
warehousemen's, mechanics', materialmen's and sithiar Liens) and Liens to secure the performaofdaids, tenders, leases or trade
contracts, or to secure statutory obligations (iditlg obligations under workers compensation, udeympent insurance and other social
security legislation), surety or appeal bonds beot.iens of like general nature incurred in theiary course of business and not in
connection with the borrowing of money;

(c) any attachment or judgment Lien, unless thgiuent it secures has not, within 60 days afteetitey thereof, been discharged or
execution thereof stayed pending appeal, or habeen discharged within 60 days after the expinatibany such stay;

(d) Liens securing Debt of a Restricted Subsidamgd to the Company or to another Restricted Sidrgid

(e) Liens securing Debt existing on property oetssf the Company or any Restricted Subsidiagf éise date of this Agreement that are
described in Schedule 10.3;

(f) encumbrances in the nature of leases, subleasemg restrictions, easements, rights of wayansurvey exceptions and other rights and
restrictions of record on the use of real propartgl defects in title arising or incurred in theinady course of business, which, individually
and in the aggregate, do not materially impairubte of the property or assets subject theretodZthimpany or such Restricted
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Subsidiary in their business or which relate oonlas$sets that in the aggregate are not Material;

(9) Liens (i) existing on property at the time tf acquisition by the Company or a Restricted Slidsi and not created in contemplation
thereof, whether or not the Debt secured by sueh Is assumed by the Company or a Restricted Sabsidr (ii) on property created
contemporaneously with its acquisition or withirb3fays of the acquisition or completion of condinrcor improvements thereof to secure
or provide for all or a portion of the purchasecpror cost of construction or improvements of guperty after the date of Closing; or (iii)
existing on property of a Person at the time sustséh is merged or consolidated with, or beconRssdricted Subsidiary of, or substantially
all of its assets are acquired by, the CompanyRestricted Subsidiary and not created in contetigplahereof; provided that such Liens do
not extend to additional property of the Compangmy Restricted Subsidiary (other than property than improvement to or is acquired for
specific use in connection with the subject progeaihd that the aggregate principal amount of Bebured by each such Lien does not
exceed the lesser of cost of acquisition or coostrm or the fair market value (determined in gdéaith by one or more officers of the
Company to whom authority to enter into the tratisachas been delegated by the board of directioitseorCompany) of the property subject
thereto;

(h) Liens resulting from extensions, renewals pfaeements of Liens permitted by paragraphs (eX@hgrovided that (i) there is no
increase in the principal amount or decrease inuntatof the Debt secured thereby at the time chsextension, renewal or replacement,

(if) any new Lien attaches only to the same propémtretofore subject to such earlier Lien and ifiiimediately after such extension, renewal
or replacement no Default or Event of Default woexist; and

(i) Liens securing Debt not otherwise permittedoayagraphs (a) through (h) above, provided thadr gfving effect to the incurrence of the
Debt so secured, Priority Debt does not exceed BA@justed Consolidated Net Worth.

10.4. Sale of Assets.

Except as permitted by Section 10.5, the Compatiyna, and will not permit any Restricted Subsigito, sell, lease, transfer or otherwise
dispose of, including by way of merger (collectival"Disposition”), any assets, including capitakc& of Restricted Subsidiaries, in one or a
series of transactions, to any Person, other than:

(a) Dispositions in the ordinary course of business
(b) Dispositions by the Company to a Restricteds&liary or by a Restricted Subsidiary to the Conypama Restricted Subsidiary; or
(c) Dispositions not otherwise permitted by Sectiom4(a) or (b), provided that:
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(i) each such Disposition is made in an arms letrgtisaction for a consideration at least equiiedair market value of the property subject
thereto;

(i) the aggregate net book value of all assetgadied of in any period of 365 consecutive daysyaursto this Section 10.4(c) does not ex
10% of Consolidated Total Assets as of the enti@immediately preceding fiscal year; and

(iii) at the time of such Disposition and after igiy effect thereto no Default or Event of Defalia have occurred and be continuing.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company maymay permit any Restricted Subsidiary to, make gp@s#ion and the assets subjec
such Disposition shall not be subject to or inctlidethe foregoing limitation and computation congal in Section 10.4(c)(ii) of the
preceding sentence to the extent that each sugo$iion is for a consideration at least equah®fair market value of the property subject
thereto, and

(A) such assets are leased back by the CompanyydRestricted Subsidiary, as lessee, within 365 adiyhe original acquisition or
construction thereof by the Company or such RéstiiSubsidiary; or

(B) the net proceeds from such Disposition are iwig®5 days of such Disposition:
(i) reinvested in productive assets used or useforrying on the business of the Company anRéstricted Subsidiaries; or

(i) applied to the payment or prepayment of anistanding Debt of the Company or any Restrictedsilidry that is pari passu with or
senior to the Notes, including the Notes.

Any prepayment of Notes pursuant to this Sectiod $8all be in accordance with Sections 8.2 angdv@itBout regard to the minimum
prepayment requirements of Section 8.2 if suchg®ds are less than such minimum.

10.5. Mergers, Consolidations, etc.

The Company will not, and will not permit any Rédted Subsidiary to, consolidate with or merge veitty other Person or convey, transfer,
sell or lease all or substantially all of its asdgata single transaction or series of transactiorsy Person except that:

(a) the Company may consolidate or merge with ahgrdPerson or convey, transfer, sell or leaseradubstantially all of its assets in a sir
transaction or series of transactions to any Pepmwvided that:
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(i) the successor formed by such consolidatiomersurvivor of such merger or the Person that aegliy conveyance, transfer, sale or lease
all or substantially all of the assets of the Compas an entirety, as the case may be, is a sateepbration organized and existing under the
laws of the United States or any state thereofyding the District of Columbia), and, if the Conmyas not such corporation, such
corporation (y) shall have executed and deliveceglaich holder of any Notes its assumption of theeahd punctual performance and
observance of each covenant and condition of tigie@dment and the Notes and (z) shall have caudeel delivered to each holder of any
Notes an opinion of nationally recognized indepena@eunsel or other independent counsel reasorsaliigfactory to the Required Holde

to the effect that all agreements or instrumerfescéhg such assumption are enforceable in accerlaith their terms and comply with the
terms hereof; and

(il immediately before and after giving effectdoch transaction, no Default or Event of Defaudtlshave occurred and be continuing; and

(b) Any Restricted Subsidiary may (x) merge inte @ompany (provided that the Company is the sumgigiorporation) or a Restricted
Subsidiary or (y) sell, transfer or lease all oy gart of its assets to the Company or a RestriStdasidiary, or (z) merge or consolidate with,
or sell, transfer or lease all or substantiallyodlits assets to, any Person in a transactionsharmitted by Section 10.4 or, as a result of
which, such Person becomes a Restricted Subsigiesyided in each instance set forth in clauseshpgugh (z) that immediately before and
after giving effect thereto, there shall exist nefult or Event of Default.

No such conveyance, transfer, sale or lease of alibstantially all of the assets of the Compdrall have the effect of releasing t
Company or any successor corporation that shaktbfore have become such in the manner prescitibnis Section 10.5 from its liability
under this Agreement or the Notes.

10.6. Designation of Restricted and UnrestrictedsRliaries.

The Company may designate any Restricted Subsid&an Unrestricted Subsidiary and any UnrestriSigusidiary as a Restricted
Subsidiary by notice in writing given to the hols@f the Notes; provided that,

(a) if such Subsidiary initially is designated asRieted Subsidiary, then such Restricted Subsidizay be subsequently designated as an
Unrestricted Subsidiary and such Unrestricted Slidngi may be subsequently designated as a Rest&eibsidiary, but no further changes in
designation may be made;

(b) if such Subsidiary initially is designated anréstricted Subsidiary, then such Unrestricted Blidoy may be subsequently designated as a
Restricted Subsidiary and such Restricted Subyidiety be subsequently designated as an Unrest&tbsidiary, but no further changes in
designation may be made; and
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(c) the Company may not designate a Restrictediiabg as an Unrestricted Subsidiary unless: (hsRestricted Subsidiary does not own,
directly or indirectly, any Debt or capital stocktbe Company or any other Restricted Subsidialysch designation, considered as a sa
assets, is permitted under Section 10.4(c)(ii), @)dmmediately before and after such designatibere exists no Default or Event of
Default.

10.7. Nature of Business.

The Company will not, and will not permit any Rédted Subsidiary to, engage in any business i§ ssult, the general nature of the
business in which the Company and its Restrictdabifliaries, taken as a whole, would then be engagedd be substantially changed from
the general nature of the business in which theg2my and its Restricted Subsidiaries, taken asaeyhare engaged on the date of this
Agreement as described in the Memorandum.

10.8. Transactions with Affiliates.

The Company will not and will not permit any Restieid Subsidiary to enter into directly or indirgatiny Material transaction or Material
group of related transactions (including withoutitation the purchase, lease, sale or exchangeopepties of any kind or the rendering of
any service) with any Affiliate (other than the Quany or another Restricted Subsidiary), excephénardinary course of the Company's or
such Restricted Subsidiary's business and upoarfigireasonable terms no less favorable to the @oyngr such Restricted Subsidiary than
would be obtainable in a comparable arm's-lengthsaction with a Person not an Affiliate.

11. EVENTS OF DEFAULT.
An "Event of Default" shall exist if any of the foWing conditions or events shall occur and be icaring:

(a) the Company defaults in the payment of anygiped or Make-Whole Amount on any Note when the sdimcomes due and payable,
whether at maturity or at a date fixed for prepagtee by declaration or otherwise; or

(b) the Company defaults in the payment of anyr@seon any Note for more than five Business Ddigs the same becomes due and
payable; or

(c) the Company defaults in the performance ofasngliance with any term contained in Sections 1Bréugh 10.8; or

(d) the Company defaults in the performance ofasngliance with any term contained herein (othentthese referred to in paragraphs (a),
(b) and (c) of this Section 11) and such defautiosremedied within 30 days after the earlierip&(Responsible Officer obtaining actual
knowledge of such default or (ii) the Company reirej written notice of such default from any holdéa Note; or
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(e) any representation or warranty made in writiggpr on behalf of the Company or by any officetted Company in this Agreement, or (to
the extent a Subsidiary Guaranty is hereafter @rdcand delivered) by any Subsidiary Guarantoryoarty officer of any Subsidiary
Guarantor in the Subsidiary Guaranty or in anyingifurnished in connection with the transactioastemplated hereby or thereby proves to
have been false or incorrect in any material respethe date as of which made; or

(f) (i) the Company or any Restricted Subsidiarinislefault (as principal or as guarantor or othaety) in the payment of any principal of or
premium or make-whole amount or interest on anytired is outstanding in an aggregate principal amgreater than 5% of Adjusted
Consolidated Net Worth beyond any period of graceiged with respect thereto, or (ii) the Companyoy Restricted Subsidiary is in
default in the performance of or compliance witly &arm of any evidence of any Debt that is outsitagnéh an aggregate principal amount
greater than 5% of Consolidated Net Worth or of smoytgage, indenture or other agreement relatiagetb or any other condition exists, and
as a consequence of such default or condition Bath has become, or has been declared (or onererPeosons are entitled to declare such
Debt to be), due and payable before its statednityatir before its regularly scheduled dates ofrpewt, or (i) as a consequence of the
occurrence or continuation of any event or condifimther than the passage of time or the righhefiolder of Debt to convert such Debt into
equity interests), (x) the Company or any Restii@eabsidiary has become obligated to purchasepayrBebt before its regular maturity or
before its regularly scheduled dates of paymeaniaggregate outstanding principal amount grehger 5% of Adjusted Consolidated Net
Worth, or (y) one or more Persons have the righétpire the Company or any Restricted Subsidiatp gurchase or repay such Debt; or

(g) the Company or any Material Restricted Subsjd{g is generally not paying, or admits in wrigiits inability to pay, its debts as they
become due, (ii) files, or consents by answer bemtise to the filing against it of, a petition f@lief or reorganization or arrangement or any
other petition in bankruptcy, for liquidation ortimke advantage of any bankruptcy, insolvency ga&uoization, moratorium or other similar
law of any jurisdiction, (iii) makes an assignmémtthe benefit of its creditors, (iv) consentdhie appointment of a custodian, receiver,
trustee or other officer with similar powers wittspect to it or with respect to any substantial pkits property, (v) is adjudicated as
insolvent or to be liquidated, or (vi) takes com@eraction for the purpose of any of the foregoong;

(h) a court or governmental authority of compejarisdiction enters an order appointing, withouhsent by the Company or any Material
Restricted Subsidiary, a custodian, receiver, ¢éustr other officer with similar powers with resptzit or with respect to any substantial part
of its property, or constituting an order for rélie approving a petition for relief or reorganipet or any other petition in bankruptcy or for
liquidation or to take advantage of any bankrumtcinsolvency law of any jurisdiction, or orderitige dissolution, winding-up or liquidation
of the Company or any Material Restricted Subsydiar any such petition shall be filed against@wnpany or any Material Restricted
Subsidiary and such petition shall not be dismisgilin 60 days; or
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(i) a final judgment or judgments for the paymehtnoney aggregating more than 5% of Adjusted Cadatdd Net Worth are rendered
against one or more of the Company and its RestfiSubsidiaries, which judgments are not, withird&@s after entry thereof, bonded,
discharged or stayed pending appeal, or are nchakiged within 60 days after the expiration of ssi@y; or

() if (i) any Plan shall fail to satisfy the minimm funding standards of ERISA or the Code for alay year or part thereof or a waiver of sl
standards or extension of any amortization pesabught or granted under section 412 of the Q@jle, notice of intent to terminate any
Plan shall have been or is reasonably expected fibelol with the PBGC or the PBGC shall have ing¢itl proceedings under ERISA section
4042 to terminate or appoint a trustee to adminety Plan or the PBGC shall have notified the Canypor any ERISA Affiliate that a Plan
may become a subject of any such proceedingsth@ipggregate "amount of unfunded benefit liabsglt (within the meaning of section 4001
(2)(18) of ERISA) under all Plans determined inaadance with Title IV of ERISA, shall be greateath5% of Adjusted Consolidated Net
Worth,

(iv) the Company or any ERISA Affiliate shall haveurred or is reasonably expected to incur aryilltg pursuant to Title | or IV of ERISA
or the penalty or excise tax provisions of the Crdating to employee benefit plans, (v) the Conypamnany ERISA Affiliate withdraws fror
any Multiemployer Plan, or (vi) the Company or @wstricted Subsidiary establishes or amends anyogemwwelfare benefit plan that
provides post-employment welfare benefits in a neatinat would increase the liability of the Compamyany Restricted Subsidiary
thereunder; and any such event or events desdrib&duses (i) through (vi) above, either indivillyar together with any other such even
events, would reasonably be expected to have aridiafalverse Effect; or

(k) to the extent a Subsidiary Guaranty is here&xecuted and delivered, any Subsidiary Guaratetaults in the performance of or
compliance with any term or condition containedhia Subsidiary Guaranty or the Subsidiary Guaraagises to be in full force and effect
(except upon the release by the holders of thedNufta Subsidiary Guarantor from the Subsidiaryr@niy) or is declared to be null and void
in whole or in material part by a court or othevgmmental or regulatory authority having jurisaiator the validity or enforceability thereof
shall be contested by the Company or any Subsi@arantor or any of them renounces any of the sardenies that it has any or further
liability thereunder.

As used in Section 11(j), the terms "employee bep&fin" and "employee welfare benefit plan” shiel/e the respective meanings assign
such terms in Section 3 of ERISA.

12. REMEDIES ON DEFAULT, ETC.
12.1. Acceleration.

(a) If an Event of Default with respect to the C@nyp described in paragraph
(9) or (h) of Section 11 (other than an Event ofddé described in clause (i) of paragraph (g) esatibed in clause (vi) of paragraph (g) by
virtue of the fact that such
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clause encompasses clause (i) of paragraph (gduasred, all the Notes then outstanding shatmatically become immediately due and
payable.

(b) If any other Event of Default has occurred andontinuing, holders of a majority in principahaunt of the Notes at the time outstanding
may at any time at its or their option, by noticenotices to the Company, declare all the Notes theéstanding to be immediately due and
payable.

(c) If any Event of Default described in paragréahor (b) of
Section 11 has occurred and is continuing, anydradd holders of Notes at the time outstandingcaéié by such Event of Default may at any
time, at its or their option, by notice or notitegshe Company, declare all the Notes held by them to be immediately due and payable.

Upon any Notes becoming due and payable undeB#ttion 12.1, whether automatically or by declaratsuch Notes will forthwith mature
and the entire unpaid principal amount of such Blgdéus (x) all accrued and unpaid interest theaah(y) any applicable Make-Whole
Amount determined in respect of such principal amdto the full extent permitted by applicable lavghall all be immediately due and
payable, in each and every case without presentmentand, protest or further notice, all of whick hereby waived. The Company
acknowledges, and the parties hereto agree, thatredder of a Note has the right to maintainntgeistment in the Notes free from repaymr
by the Company (except as herein specifically mtedifor) and that the provision for payment of ekist&Vhole Amount by the Company in
the event that the Notes are prepaid or are aetetens a result of an Event of Default is intendgalovide compensation for the deprivation
of such right under such circumstances.

12.2. Other Remedies.

If any Default or Event of Default has occurred @dontinuing, and irrespective of whether anyddédtave become or have been declared
immediately due and payable under Section 12.1hokaer of any Note at the time outstanding mayceea to protect and enforce the rights
of such holder by an action at law, suit in equityther appropriate proceeding, whether for trecsije performance of any agreement
contained herein or in any Note, or for an injuoictagainst a violation of any of the terms heredhereof, or in aid of the exercise of any
power granted hereby or thereby or by law or otlezw

12.3. Rescission.

At any time after any Notes have been declaredatidepayable pursuant to clause (b) or (c) of Sedtihl, the holders of a majority in
principal amount of the Notes then outstandingwbigten notice to the Company, may rescind and hany such declaration and its
consequences if (a) the Company has paid all oedrdarest on the Notes, all principal of and amkit\Whole Amount on any Notes that
are due and payable and are unpaid other tharalspmeof such declaration, and all interest on sweindue principal and any Make-Whole
Amount and (to the extent permitted by applicablg)lany overdue interest in respect of the NotetheaDefault Rate, (b) all Events of
Default and Defaults, other than non-payment of
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amounts that have become due solely by reasorcbfdeclaration, have been cured or have been wawesiant to Section 17, and (c) no
judgment or decree has been entered for the payohanty monies due pursuant hereto or to the Ndtesescission and annulment un
this Section 12.3 will extend to or affect any sdpsent Event of Default or Default or impair arghti consequent thereon.

12.4. No Waivers or Election of Remedies, Expenses,

No course of dealing and no delay on the part gfreoider of any Note in exercising any right, poweremedy shall operate as a wai
thereof or otherwise prejudice such holder's righdsvers or remedies. No right, power or remedyfewed by this Agreement or by any N
upon any holder thereof shall be exclusive of atmgoright, power or remedy referred to hereinharein or now or hereafter available at |
in equity, by statute or otherwise. Without limgithe obligations of the Company under Sectionti®& Company will pay to the holder of
each Note on demand such further amount as shaliffieient to cover all costs and expenses of $watier incurred in any enforcement or
collection under this Section 12, including, withdimitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, expenasésdisbursements.

13. REGISTRATION; EXCHANGE; SUBSTITUTION OF NOTES.
13.1. Registration of Notes.

The Company shall keep at its principal executiffie® a register for the registration and registnatof transfers of Notes. The name and
address of each holder of one or more Notes, eankfer thereof and the name and address of eat$féree of one or more Notes shall be
registered in such register. Prior to due presentrioe registration of transfer, the Person in whoame any Note shall be registered shall be
deemed and treated as the owner and holder thferealf purposes hereof, and the Company shalbeaffected by any notice or knowledge
to the contrary. The Company shall give to any éplf a Note that is an Institutional Investor, ppily upon request therefor, a complete
and correct copy of the names and addresses refggdtered holders of Notes.

13.2. Transfer and Exchange of Notes.

Upon surrender of any Note at the principal exeeutiffice of the Company for registration of tragrsér exchange (and in the case of a
surrender for registration of transfer, duly enddrer accompanied by a written instrument of trandtily executed by the registered holder
of such Note or his attorney duly authorized intiwg and accompanied by the address for noticesadi transferee of such Note or part
thereof), the Company shall execute and delivaheaCompany's expense (except as provided betme)pr more new Notes (as requested
by the holder thereof) of the same series in exgbaherefor, in an aggregate principal amount egu#ide unpaid principal amount of the
surrendered Note. Each such new Note shall be pay@buch Person as such holder may request atichehsubstantially in the form of
Exhibit 1(a) or 1(b), as appropriate. Each such Nexte shall be dated and bear interest from the watvhich interest shall have been paic
the surrendered Note or dated the date of thermigred Note if no interest shall have been paicetire The Company may require
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payment of a sum sufficient to cover any stampotagovernmental charge imposed in respect of anly sansfer of Notes. Notes shall not
transferred in denominations of less than $100,p08yided that if necessary to enable the registraif transfer by a holder of its entire
holding of Notes, one Note may be in a denominatibless than $100,000. Any transferee, by its pieoee of a Note registered in its name
(or the name of its nominee), shall be deemed ¥e h@ade the representation set forth in Section 6.2

13.3. Replacement of Notes.

Upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasorsdtigfactory to it of the ownership of and the Jdksft, destruction or mutilation of any
Note (which evidence shall be, in the case of atitlrtional Investor, notice from such Institutibhavestor of such ownership and such ¢
theft, destruction or mutilation), and

(a) in the case of loss, theft or destructionpaiemnity reasonably satisfactory to it (providedl tifithe holder of such Note is, or is a nomi
for, an original Purchaser or another Institutiomalestor holder of a Note with a minimum net waofhat least $50,000,000, such Person's
own unsecured agreement of indemnity shall be ddembe satisfactory), or

(b) in the case of mutilation, upon surrender aamcellation thereof,

the Company at its own expense shall execute dindeden lieu thereof, a new Note of the sameesgridated and bearing interest from the
date to which interest shall have been paid on ksthstolen, destroyed or mutilated Note or dabeddate of such lost, stolen, destroyed or
mutilated Note if no interest shall have been paateon.

14. PAYMENTS ON NOTES.
14.1. Place of Payment.

Subject to Section 14.2, payments of principal, 8&®hole Amount, if any, and interest becoming dué payable on the Notes shall be
made in Chicago, lllinois at the principal officEBank of America in such jurisdiction. The Compangy at any time, by notice to each
holder of a Note, change the place of payment®ibtes so long as such place of payment shalther¢he principal office of the Compa
in such jurisdiction or the principal office of afk or trust company in such jurisdiction.

14.2. Home Office Payment.

So long as you or your nominee shall be the hadfleny Note, and notwithstanding anything contaiime8ection 14.1 or in such Note to the
contrary, the Company will pay all sums becoming dua such Note for principal, Make-Whole Amountify, and interest by the method
and at the address specified for such purpose bgbowname in Schedule A, or by such other methaat such other address as you shall
have from time to time specified to the Companwiiting for such purpose, without the presentatiosurrender of such Note or the making
of any notation thereon, except that upon writesuest of the
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Company made concurrently with or reasonably préyrgiter payment or prepayment in full of any Noteu shall surrender such Note for
cancellation, reasonably promptly after any sucjuest, to the Company at its principal executivfecefor at the place of payment most
recently designated by the Company pursuant ta@et#.1. Prior to any sale or other dispositiorany Note held by you or your nominee
you will, at your election, either endorse ther¢tom amount of principal paid thereon and the last do which interest has been paid thel

or surrender such Note to the Company in exchamge fiew Note or Notes pursuant to Section 13.2. Gbmpany will afford the benefits of
this Section 14.2 to any Institutional Investorttisathe direct or indirect transferee of any Nptechased by you under this Agreement and
that has made the same agreement relating to sotehad you have made in this

Section 14.2.

15. EXPENSES, ETC.
15.1. Transaction Expenses.

Whether or not the transactions contemplated hemedbgonsummated, the Company will pay all costsepenses (including reasonable
attorneys' fees of a special counsel and, if ressigmequired, local or other counsel) incurredyby and each Other Purchaser or holder of a
Note in connection with such transactions and imeation with any amendments, waivers or consamiguor in respect of this Agreem:

or the Notes (whether or not such amendment, waiveonsent becomes effective), including: (a)dbsts and expenses incurred in
enforcing or defending (or determining whether owto enforce or defend) any rights under this &gnent or the Notes or in responding to
any subpoena or other legal process or informadstigative demand issued in connection with thise&gent or the Notes, or by reason of
being a holder of any Note, and (b) the costs apémses, including financial advisors' fees, inediin connection with the insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or any Subsidiary ordnreection with any work-out or restructuring of th@nsactions contemplated hereby and
by the Notes. The Company will pay, and will saee ynd each other holder of a Note harmless frdmlaagms in respect of any fees, costs
or expenses if any, of brokers and finders (othanthose retained by you).

15.2. Survival.

The obligations of the Company under this Sectidmvill survive the payment or transfer of any Ndtes enforcement, amendment or wai
of any provision of this Agreement or the Noteg] &me termination of this Agreement.

16. SURVIVAL OF REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES; ENRE AGREEMENT.

All representations and warranties contained heskeall survive the execution and delivery of thigrédement and the Notes, the purchase or
transfer by you of any Note or portion thereofrderest therein and the payment of any Note, andbeaelied upon by any subsequent
holder of a Note, regardless of any investigati@enat any time by or on behalf of you or any ott@der of a Note. All statements
contained in any certificate or other instrumerivéeed by or on behalf of the Company pursuarthte Agreement shall be deemed
representations and warranties of the Company uhaeAgreement. Subject to the preceding
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sentence, this Agreement and the Notes embodyntire agreement and understanding between youren@ampany and supersede all prior
agreements and understandings relating to the dubgter hereof.

17. AMENDMENT AND WAIVER.
17.1. Requirements.

This Agreement, the Notes and (to the extent oesesuted and delivered) the Subsidiary Guaranty meeamended, and the observance of
any term hereof or of the Notes or such Subsidizugranty may be waived (either retroactively orspextively), with (and only with) the
written consent of the Company and the Requiredlétsl except that (a) no amendment or waiver ofodutlye provisions of Section 1, 2, 3,
4,5, 6 or 21 hereof, or any defined term (as itsied therein), will be effective as to you unlesssented to by you in writing, and (b) no such
amendment or waiver may, without the written conséthe holder of each Note at the time outstagdifiected thereby, (i) subject to the
provisions of Section 12 relating to acceleratiomescission, change the amount or time of anygyneent or payment of principal of, or
reduce the rate or change the time of payment ¢hhadeof computation of interest or of the Make-Whaimount on, the Notes, (ii) change
the percentage of the principal amount of the Nttesholders of which are required to consent fosarth amendment or waiver, or (iii)
amend any of Sections 8, 11(a), 11(b), 12, 17 or 20

17.2. Solicitation of Holders of Notes.

(a) Solicitation. The Company will provide eachdw of the Notes (irrespective of the amount ofdddhen owned by it) with sufficient
information, sufficiently far in advance of the dat decision is required, to enable such holderake an informed and considered decision
with respect to any proposed amendment, waiveonsent in respect of any of the provisions hereaffdhe Notes. The Company will
deliver executed or true and correct copies of emsbndment, waiver or consent effected pursuathiet@rovisions of this Section 17 to each
holder of outstanding Notes promptly following ti&te on which it is executed and delivered bygeoeives the consent or approval of, the
requisite holders of Notes.

(b) Payment. The Company will not directly or iretitly pay or cause to be paid any remunerationttvendy way of supplemental or
additional interest, fee or otherwise, or grant aagurity, to any holder of Notes as considerdioror as an inducement to the entering into
by any holder of Notes or any waiver or amendméaing of the terms and provisions hereof unles$ samuneration is concurrently paid
security is concurrently granted, on the same teratably to each holder of Notes then outstandwen if such holder did not consent to s
waiver or amendment.

17.3. Binding Effect, etc.

Any amendment or waiver consented to as providedignSection 17 applies equally to all holderdotes and is binding upon them and
upon each future holder of any Note and upon thmgamy without regard to whether such Note has besked to indicate such

32



amendment or waiver. No such amendment or waivitextend to or affect any obligation, covenantesggnent, Default or Event of Default
not expressly amended or waived or impair any rigimsequent thereon. No course of dealing betwe@ompany and the holder of any
Note nor any delay in exercising any rights hereuradt under any Note shall operate as a waivenpfights of any holder of such Note. .
used herein, the term "this Agreement” or "the &grent" and references thereto shall mean this Aggatas it may from time to time be
amended or supplemented.

17.4. Notes held by Company, etc.

Solely for the purpose of determining whether thilars of the requisite percentage of the aggrguateipal amount of Notes then
outstanding approved or consented to any amendmvaivier or consent to be given under this Agreemetite Notes, or have directed the
taking of any action provided herein or in the Nuatie be taken upon the direction of the holdera sifecified percentage of the aggregate
principal amount of Notes then outstanding, Noiesctly or indirectly owned by the Company or ariyite Affiliates shall be deemed not to
be outstanding.

18. NOTICES.

All notices and communications provided for herezmshall be in writing and sent (a) by facsimil¢hié sender on the same day sends a
confirming copy of such notice by a recognized aigirt delivery service (charges prepaid), or (byéyistered or certified mail with return
receipt requested (postage prepaid), or (c) bgegrzed overnight delivery service (with chargesppid). Any such notice must be sent:

(i) if to you or your nominee, to you or it at taddress specified for such communications in Sdeedluor at such other address as you or it
shall have specified to the Company in writing,

(i) if to any other holder of any Note, to suchider at such address as such other holder shal $ecified to the Company in writing, or

(iii) if to the Company, to the Company at its agll set forth at the beginning hereof to the atterf the Chief Executive Officer, or at st
other address as the Company shall have spedaifitet tholder of each Note in writing.

Notices under this Section 18 will be deemed gimely when actually receive:
19. REPRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS.

This Agreement and all documents relating theiatduding, without limitation, (a) consents, waiseand modifications that may hereaftel
executed, (b) documents received by you at theit@jgqexcept the Notes themselves), and (c) findstéements, certificates and other
information previously or hereafter furnished tasymay be reproduced by you by any photographiotqstatic, microfilm, microcard,
miniature photographic or other similar process yma may destroy any original document so reprodutee Company agrees and stipul
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that, to the extent permitted by applicable lawy, smch reproduction shall be admissible in evideagcthe original itself in any judicial or
administrative proceeding (whether or not the magjis in existence and whether or not such reprioln was made by you in the regular
course of business) and any enlargement, facsoniierther reproduction of such reproduction shikiwise be admissible in evidence. This
Section 19 shall not prohibit the Company or arheoholder of Notes from contesting any such repetidn to the same extent that it could
contest the original, or from introducing evidemnca@lemonstrate the inaccuracy of any such repramuct

20. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.

For the purposes of this Section 20, "Confidertitdrmation" means information delivered to youdryon behalf of the Company or any
Subsidiary in connection with the transactions eolated by or otherwise pursuant to this Agreerti@ttis proprietary in nature and that
was clearly marked or labeled or otherwise adedyatentified when received by you as being confiiilel information of the Company or
such Subsidiary, provided that such term doesmuttide information that (a) was publicly known ¢he@rwise known to you prior to the time
of such disclosure, (b) subsequently becomes pulidimown through no act or omission by you or aeysen acting on your behalf, (c)
otherwise becomes known to you other than throusgtiasure by the Company or any Subsidiary or @istitutes financial statements
delivered to you under Section 7.1 that are otheavpublicly available. You will maintain the cordidtiality of such Confidential Information
in accordance with procedures adopted by you irddaith to protect confidential information of tHiparties delivered to you, provided that
you may deliver or disclose Confidential Informatim (i) your directors, trustees, officers, emgey, agents, attorneys and affiliates (tc
extent such disclosure reasonably relates to therastration of the investment represented by yates), (ii) your financial advisors and
other professional advisors who agree to hold demfiial the Confidential Information substantidaflyaccordance with the terms of this
Section 20, (iii) any other holder of any Note) @ny Institutional Investor to which you sell dfes to sell such Note or any part thereof or
any participation therein (if such Person has atjieevriting prior to its receipt of such Confid@aitinformation to be bound by the
provisions of this Section 20), (v) any Person frehiich you offer to purchase any security of therfpany (if such Person has agreed in
writing prior to its receipt of such Confidentiaifbrmation to be bound by the provisions of thistm 20),

(vi) any federal or state regulatory authority mayjurisdiction over you,

(vii) the National Association of Insurance Comraggrs or any similar organization, or any natibneg¢cognized rating agency that requi
access to information about your investment padfot (viii) any other Person to which such delier disclosure may be necessary or
appropriate (w) to effect compliance with any laule, regulation or order applicable to you, (xy@sponse to any subpoena or other legal
process, (y) in connection with any litigation tbieh you are a party or (z) if an Event of Deféhds occurred and is continuing, to the extent
you may reasonably determine such delivery andatisce to be necessary or appropriate in the eafoent or for the protection of the rigl
and remedies under your Notes and this Agreemach Bolder of a Note, by its acceptance of a Neilebe deemed to have agreed to be
bound by and to be entitled to the benefits of 8dstion 20 as though it were a party to this Agrexet. On reasonable request by the
Company in connection with the delivery to any teoldf a Note of information required to be delivete such holder under this Agreement
or requested by such holder (other than a holdgrisha party to this Agreement or its nominee),
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such holder will enter into an agreement with tlienpany embodying the provisions of this Section 20.
21. SUBSTITUTION OF PURCHASER.

You shall have the right to substitute any oneamifryAffiliates as the purchaser of the Notes tlmat iave agreed to purchase hereunder, by
written notice to the Company, which notice shelldigned by both you and such Affiliate, shall @msuch Affiliate's agreement to be
bound by this Agreement and shall contain a corgtrom by such Affiliate of the accuracy with resptexit of the representations set forth in
Section 6. Upon receipt of such notice, wherevenmtbrd "you" is used in this Agreement (other thathis Section 21), such word shall be
deemed to refer to such Affiliate in lieu of yon.the event that such Affiliate is so substitutecagurchaser hereunder and such Affiliate
thereafter transfers to you all of the Notes theld by such Affiliate, upon receipt by the Comparfiyiotice of such transfer, wherever the
word "you" is used in this Agreement (other thathis Section 21), such word shall no longer berdkto refer to such Affiliate, but shall
refer to you, and you shall have all the rightsuoforiginal holder of the Notes under this Agreemen

22. MISCELLANEOQOUS.
22.1. Successors and Assigns.

All covenants and other agreements contained snAfjreement by or on behalf of any of the partie®to bind and inure to the benefit of
their respective successors and assigns (includiitigout limitation, any subsequent holder of a &avhether so expressed or not.

22.2. Payments Due on Non-Business Days.

Anything in this Agreement or the Notes to the cant notwithstanding, any payment of principal oiake-Whole Amount or interest on
any Note that is due on a date other than a BusiDay shall be made on the next succeeding Busiegsvithout including the additional
days elapsed in the computation of the interesalpi@yon such next succeeding Business Day.

22.3. Severability.

Any provision of this Agreement that is prohibitedunenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, asuorsjurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent
of such prohibition or unenforceability without mlidating the remaining provisions hereof, and smgh prohibition or unenforceability in
any jurisdiction shall (to the full extent permdtby law) not invalidate or render unenforceablehsprovision in any other jurisdiction.

22.4. Construction.

Each covenant contained herein shall be constralgskat express provision to the contrary) as heubgpendent of each other covenant
contained herein, so that compliance
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with any one covenant shall not (absent such aresggontrary provision) be deemed to excuse camgsi with any other covenant. Where
any provision herein refers to action to be takgmty Person, or which such Person is prohibitethftaking, such provision shall be
applicable whether such action is taken directlindirectly by such Person.

22.5. Counterparts.

This Agreement may be executed in any number oftesparts, each of which shall be an original biuvfawhich together shall constitute
one instrument. Each counterpart may consist afralrer of copies hereof, each signed by less tHabultogether signed by all, of the
parties hereto.

22.6. Governing Law.

This Agreement shall be construed and enforceddoralance with, and the rights of the parties dhaljoverned by, the law of the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts excluding choicexafgrinciples of the law of such Commonwealth thatild require the application of
the laws of a jurisdiction other than such Commocetie
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If you are in agreement with the foregoing, plesiga the form of agreement on the accompanying teopart of this Agreement and return it
to the Company, whereupon the foregoing shall becarminding agreement between you and the Company.

Very truly yours,
WATTSINDUSTRIES, INC.
By:
Name:
Title:

S1



The foregoing is agreed to as of the date thereof.

CONNECTICUT GENERAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
By: CIGNA Investments, Inc. (authorized agent)

2

Name:
Title:

LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA
By: CIGNA Investments, Inc. (authorized agent)




HARTFORD FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY
By: HARTFORD INVESTMENT SERVICES, INC.
[ts Agent and Attorney in Fact
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NATIONWIDE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

g

Name:
Title:

NATIONWIDE MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY

By:
Name:
Title:

NATIONWIDE LIFE AND ANNUITY INSURANCE COMPANY

52

ame:
Title:

NATIONWIDE INDEMNITY COMPANY

£

ame:
Title:

SCOTTSDALE INSURANCE COMPANY

L
)

o
=
®

NATIONWIDE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA
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THE TRAVELERSINSURANCE COMPANY

g

Name:
Title:

NATIONAL BENEFIT LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

By:
Name:
Title:

PRIMERICA LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY




SWISSRE LIFE & HEALTH AMERICA, INC.
By: Swiss Re Asset Management (Americas) Inc.

By:
Name: John H. DeMalli
Title: Vice President

FORT WAYNE HEALTH & CASUALTY INSURANCE COMPANY
By: Swiss Re Asset Management (Americas) Inc.

By:
Name: John H. DeMalli
Title: Vice President

SOUTHWESTERN LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
By: Swiss Re Asset Management (Americas) Inc.

By:
Name: John H. DeMalli
Title: Vice President
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AMERICAN INVESTORSLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

By: AmerUs Capital Management Group, Inc., its atited attorney-in-fact

5

me:
e:

=
—+

BANKERSLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NEW YORK

By: AmerUs Capital Management Group, Inc., its atited attorney-in-fact

By:
Name:
Title:

INDIANAPOLISLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

By: AmerUs Capital Management Group, Inc., its attted attorney-in-fact

=2 |®
=+
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AMERICAN UNITED LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

g

Name:
Title:

PIONEER MUTUAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

By:
Name:
Title:

THE STATE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY




ASSURITY LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

£

ame:
Title:

WOODMEN ACCIDENT AND LIFE COMPANY

By:
Name:
Title:
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SECURITY FINANCIAL LIFE INSURANCE CO.
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SCHEDULE B
DEFINED TERMS
As used herein, the following terms have the rethpeeanings set forth below or set forth in tleetin hereof following such term:

"Adjusted Consolidated Net Worth" means, as of dag, consolidated stockholders' equity of the Caimgand its Restricted Subsidiaries on
such date, determined in accordance with GAAPtlessamount by which outstanding Restricted Inveatsen such date exceed 10% of
consolidated stockholders' equity of the Compard/itmRestricted Subsidiaries on such date.

"Affiliate" means, at any time, and with respectitty Person, (a) any other Person that at suchdiraetly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries Controls, or is Controlled by, oursler common Control with, such first Person, @jdany Person beneficially owning or
holding, directly or indirectly, 10% or more of ankass of voting or equity interests of the Compangny Subsidiary or any corporation of
which the Company and its Subsidiaries beneficia#tyn or hold, in the aggregate, directly or indilyyc10% or more of any class of voting
equity interests. As used in this definition, "Qmit means the possession, directly or indireafythe power to direct or cause the directio
the management and policies of a Person, whethaugh the ownership of voting securities, by coetta otherwise. Unless the context
otherwise clearly requires, any reference to afiliaie” is a reference to an Affiliate of the Coamy. Notwithstanding anything in the
foregoing to the contrary, a Person that (i) wdaddan Affiliate of the Company solely by virtueitsf ownership of voting or equity interests
of the Company and (ii) is eligible pursuant to ®UBd-1(b) under the Exchange Act to file a stateéméth the Securities and Exchange
Commission on Schedule 13G, shall not be deembd tm Affiliate.

"Anti-Terrorism Order" means Executive Order 1322%&6eptember 23, 2001 Blocking Property and PraihilpiTransactions With Persons
Who Commit, Threaten to Commit, or Support Termor{®6 Fed. Reg. 49079 (2001).

"Business Day" means (a) for the purposes of Se&i6 only, any day other than a Saturday, a Sundayday on which commercial banks
in New York City are required or authorized to besed, and (b) for the purposes of any other prowisf this Agreement, any day other tf
a Saturday, a Sunday or a day on which commeraigtdin Chicago, lllinois, Boston, Massachusettislew York City are required or
authorized to be closed.

"Capital Lease" means, at any time, a lease witpeaet to which the lessee is required concurréatigcognize the acquisition of an asset
the incurrence of a liability in accordance with SR

"Closing" is defined in Section 3.
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"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 198&nended from time to time, and the rules and réiguis promulgated thereunder from
time to time.

"Company" means Watts Industries, Inc., a Delawargoration.
"Confidential Information" is defined in Section.20

"Consolidated EBITDA" means, for any period, thensof Consolidated Net Income for such period, plaghe extent deducted in
determining such Consolidated Net Income, (i) Ctidated Interest Expense, (ii) federal, state, laca foreign income, franchise, value
added and similar taxes, and (iii) depreciation amdrtization expense.

"Consolidated Fixed Charges" means, for any petloglsum of (i) Consolidated Interest Expense tiehsperiod and (ii) Consolidated
Rentals for such period under all leases other @eguital Leases.

"Consolidated Income Available for Fixed Charge®ams, for any period, the sum of (i) ConsolidatBdT®A for such period and (ii)
Consolidated Rentals for such period under alldsagher than Capital Leases.

"Consolidated Interest Expense" means, for anygethe consolidated interest expense of the Coynaad its Restricted Subsidiaries for
such period determined on a consolidated basisdardance with GAAP.

"Consolidated Net Income" means, for any period,rtat income or loss of the Company and its ReésttiSubsidiaries for such period
(including, without duplication, income attributemlminority interests) determined on a consoliddtesis in accordance with GAAP, but in
any event excluding extraordinary or nonrecurriafng or losses.

"Consolidated Rentals" means, for any period, émtal expense of the Company and its Restrictedi8ialoies for such period under all
leases, determined on a consolidated basis indacoe with GAAP.

"Consolidated Total Assets" means, as of any dlag¢etotal assets of the Company and its Restrigtdasidiaries as of such date, determined
on a consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP.

"Debt" with respect to any Person means, at ang,timithout duplication,
(a) its liabilities for borrowed money;

(b) its liabilities for the deferred purchase prafgproperty acquired by such Person (excludingants payable and other accrued liabilities
arising in the ordinary course of business butlditlg all liabilities created or arising under arpnditional sale or other title retention
agreement with respect to any such property);
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(c) all liabilities appearing on its balance shieedccordance with GAAP in respect of Capital Lease

(d) all liabilities for borrowed money secured byad.ien with respect to any property owned by sBelnson (whether or not it has assume
otherwise become liable for such liabilities); and

(e) any Guaranty of such Person with respect hiliies of a type described in any of clausestiiaugh (d) hereof.

"Default” means an event or condition the occureemrcexistence of which would, with the lapse ofdior the giving of notice or both,
become an Event of Default.

"Default Rate" means that rate of interest théthésgreater of
(i) 2% per annum above the rate of interest statethuse (a) of the first paragraph of the Notegip2% over the rate of interest publicly
announced by Bank of America in Chicago, lllindgsi@s "base" or "prime" rate.

"Disposition" is defined in Section 10.4.

"Environmental Laws" means any and all Federatestacal, and foreign statutes, laws, regulationdinances, rules, judgments, orders,

decrees, permits, concessions, grants, franchisesses, agreements or governmental restrictielasimg to pollution and the protection of
the environment or the release of any materiatstim environment, including but not limited to sleaelated to hazardous substances or
wastes, air emissions and discharges to wastehticgystems.

"ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income Sgclét of 1974, as amended from time to time, dr@rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder from time to time in effect.

"ERISA Affiliate" means any trade or business (Wiegtor not incorporated) that is treated as a siegiployer together with the Company
under section 414 of the Code.

"Event of Default" is defined in Section 11.

"Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange A&B8#, as amended.

"Form 10-K" is defined in Section 5.3.

"Form 10-Q" is defined in Section 5.3.

"GAAP" means generally accepted accounting priesigls in effect from time to time in the Unitedt8saof America.
3
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"Governmental Authority” means
(a) the government of
() the United States of America or any State deotpolitical subdivision thereof, or

(i) any jurisdiction in which the Company or anyltiidiary conducts all or any part of its businessyhich asserts jurisdiction over any
properties of the Company or any Subsidiary, or

(b) any entity exercising executive, legislativedifial, regulatory or administrative functions of,pertaining to, any such government.

"Guaranty" means, with respect to any Person, atigation (except the endorsement in the ordinayrse of business of negotiable
instruments for deposit or collection) of such Barguaranteeing or in effect guaranteeing any itetktess, dividend or other obligation of
any other Person in any manner, whether directipdirectly, including (without limitation) oblig&ins incurred through an agreement,
contingent or otherwise, by such Person:

(a) to purchase such indebtedness or obligati@mgproperty constituting security therefor;

(b) to advance or supply funds (i) for the purchaspayment of such indebtedness or obligatiotiioto maintain any working capital or
other balance sheet condition or any income statenundition of any other Person or otherwise teaade or make available funds for the
purchase or payment of such indebtedness or oigligat

(c) to lease properties or to purchase propertisgiwices primarily for the purpose of assuring dlwvner of such indebtedness or obligatic
the ability of any other Person to make paymerthefindebtedness or obligation; or

(d) otherwise to assure the owner of such indelgssior obligation against loss in respect thereof.

In any computation of the indebtedness or othéiliiees of the obligor under any Guaranty, thegbtedness or other obligations that are the
subject of such Guaranty shall be assumed to ketdibligations of such obligor.

"Hazardous Material" means any and all pollutatatsic or hazardous wastes or any other substahe¢snight pose a hazard to health or
safety, the removal of which may be required orgleeration, manufacture, refining, productioncpssing, treatment, storage, handling,
transportation, transfer, use, disposal, reledsehdrge, spillage, seepage, or filtration of whghr shall be restricted, prohibited or penal
by any applicable law (including, without limitatipasbestos, urea formaldehyde foam insulatiorpahgtholorinated biphenyls).

4
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"holder" means, with respect to any Note, the Reimsavhose name such Note is registered in thestegiaintained by the Company
pursuant to
Section 13.1.

"INHAM Exemption" is defined in Section 6.2(e).

"Institutional Investor" means (a) any original poaser of a Note,

(b) any holder of more than $2,000,000 in aggrepateipal amount of the Notes at the time outsitagdand (c) any bank, trust company,
savings and loan association or other financiditit®on, any pension plan, any investment compamy, insurance company, any broker or
dealer, or any other similar financial institutionentity, regardless of legal form.

"Investment" means any investment, made in cadly delivery of property, by the Company or anytsfRestricted Subsidiaries (i) in any
Person, whether by acquisition of shares of capitaik, indebtedness or other obligations or sgeayior by loan, Guaranty, advance, capital
contribution or otherwise, or (ii) in any property.

"Lien" means, with respect to any Person, any nagieg lien, pledge, charge, security interest oerotimcumbrance, or any interest or title of
any vendor, lessor, lender or other secured panty bf such Person under any conditional salélwerditle retention agreement or Capital
Lease, upon or with respect to any property ortaffsguch Person (including in the case of stotdgldholder agreements, voting trust
agreements and all similar arrangements).

"Make-Whole Amount" is defined in Section 8.6.

"Material" means material in relation to the busieoperations, affairs, financial condition, as®gtproperties of the Company and its
Restricted Subsidiaries taken as a whole.

"Material Adverse Effect" means a material adveffect on (a) the business, operations, affairgricial condition, assets or properties of
Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries takenvelscde, or (b) the ability of the Company to perfaitsiobligations under this Agreement
and the Notes, or

(c) the ability of any Subsidiary Guarantor to penfi its obligations under the Subsidiary Guaraifitgpplicable, or (d) the validity or
enforceability of this Agreement, the Notes or $ubsidiary Guaranty, if applicable.

"Material Restricted Subsidiary” means, at any tiemgy Subsidiary Guarantor or any Restricted Sudnsidhat would at such time account
more than 5% of (i) Consolidated Total Assets ahefend of the most recently completed fiscal tguar (i) consolidated revenue of the
Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries for the fisgal quarters ending as of the end of the mexsntly completed fiscal quarter.

"Memorandum" is defined in Section 5.3.
5
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"Multiemployer Plan" means any Plan that is a "meuafiployer plan" (as such term is defined in sectiof1(a)(3) of ERISA).
“Notes" is defined in Section 1.

"Officer's Certificate" means a certificate of anf@e Financial Officer or of any other officer dfé Company whose responsibilities extend to
the subject matter of such certificate.

"Other Purchasers" is defined in Section 2.
"PBGC" means the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corpmratferred to and defined in ERISA or any sucaetisreto.

"Person” means an individual, partnership, corpamatimited liability company, association, trughincorporated organization, or a
government or agency or political subdivision tioére

"Plan" means an "employee benefit plan" (as definesbction 3(3) of ERISA) that is or, within theepeding five years, has been established
or maintained, or to which contributions are orthivi the preceding five years, have been madequined to be made, by the Company or
any ERISA Affiliate or with respect to which the @pany or any ERISA Affiliate may have any liability

"Priority Debt" means, as of any date, the sumh@ut duplication) of (a) outstanding unsecured QElRestricted Subsidiaries that are not
Subsidiary Guarantors other than (i) Debt owedeoG@ompany or another Restricted Subsidiary, (ifecured Debt of a Person outstanding
at the time it becomes a Restricted Subsidiarwigeal that (A) such Person is not an Unrestrictebs&liary and (B) such Debt was not
incurred in contemplation of such Person becomiRgstricted Subsidiary and (iii) other unsecurettipeovided that the aggregate princi
amount of such Debt does not at any time exceef,$06,000, and (b) Debt of the Company and itsriRéstl Subsidiaries secured by Liens
not otherwise permitted by the introductory claas&ection 10.3 and Sections 10.3 (a) through (h).

"property" or "properties" means, unless othengisecifically limited, real or personal propertyasfy kind, tangible or intangible, choate or
inchoate.

"Purchaser" means each purchaser listed in Schédule
"QPAM Exemption" is defined in Section 6.2(d).

"Required Holders" means, at any time, the holdéeg least a majority in principal amount of thetsk at the time outstanding (exclusive of
Notes then owned by the Company or any of its iatiés).

6

Schedule B



"Responsible Officer" means any Senior Financidio®f and any other officer of the Company withpessibility for the administration of
the relevant portion of this Agreement.

"Restricted Investments" means all Investmentsi@f@Gompany and its Restricted Subsidiaries, ottear:t

(a) property or assets to be used or consumectiorttinary course of business;

(b) current assets arising from the sale of goad®rvices in the ordinary course of business;

(c) Investments in Restricted Subsidiaries or ip Barson that, as a result thereof, becomes ai®edtSubsidiary;
(d) Investments existing as of the date of thise®gnent that are listed in the attached SchedulpaBd

(e) Investments in common stock of the Company hreits treasury;

(f) Investments in:

(i) obligations, maturing within one year from ttiate of acquisition, of or fully guaranteed by Wmited States of America, or an agency
thereof, or Canada, or any province thereof;

(i) state, or municipal securities having an efffez maturity within one year from the date of aisifion that are rated in one of the top two
rating classifications by at least one nationadlgagnized rating agency;

(iii) certificates of deposit or banker's accepmmaturing within one year from the date of adtjaisof or issued by commercial banks
whose long-term unsecured debt obligations (otdhg-term unsecured debt obligations of the barilihg company owning all of the
capital stock of such bank) are rated in one otdpewo rating classifications by at least onaaratlly recognized rating agency;

(iv) commercial paper maturing within 270 days frtme date of issuance that, at the time of acdpisits rated in one of the top two rating
classifications by at least one credit rating agesfaecognized national standing;

(v) repurchase agreements; and
(vi) money market instrument programs that are erypclassified as current assets in accordande GRAP.
7
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"Restricted Subsidiary" means any Subsidiary (ayluth at least a majority of the voting securitiee owned by the Company and/or one or
more Restricted Subsidiaries and (b) that the Compas not designated an Unrestricted Subsidiaryoltige in writing given to the holders
of the Notes pursuant to Section 10.6.

"Securities Act" means the Securities Act of 1983amended from time to time.
"Senior Financial Officer" means the chief finah@#icer, principal accounting officer, treasui@rcomptroller of the Company.
"Source" is defined in Section 6.2.

"Subsidiary" means, as to any Person, any corporadissociation or other business entity in whigthsPerson or one or more of its
Subsidiaries or such Person and one or more 8litsidiaries owns sufficient equity or voting ie&ts to enable it or them (as a group)
ordinarily, in the absence of contingencies, tateéemajority of the directors (or Persons perfaoigrsimilar functions) of such entity, and any
partnership, limited liability company or joint vieme if more than a 50% interest in the profiteapital thereof is owned by such Person or
one or more of its Subsidiaries or such Personoaedor more of its Subsidiaries (unless such pesti, limited liability company or joint
venture can and does ordinarily take major busiaetsns without the prior approval of such Perspone or more of its Subsidiaries).
Unless the context otherwise clearly requires, rafgrence to a "Subsidiary" is a reference to ssiligry of the Company.

"Subsidiary Guarantor" means any Subsidiary of@bepany that executes and delivers to each hofdaed\otes a Subsidiary Guaranty.
"Subsidiary Guaranty" means a Guaranty in substiythe form of the attached Exhibit B-1.
"this Agreement" or "the Agreement" is defined ecfon 17.3.

"Unrestricted Subsidiary" means any Subsidianhef€ompany that has been so designated by notiggting given to the holders of the
Notes.

"USA Patriot Act" means Public Law 1®6 of the United States of America, United and r8itkening America by Providing Tools Requi
to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism (USA PATRIO TGt Af 2001.
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Exhibit 4.2
[FORM OF SERIES A SENIOR NOTE]
WATTSINDUSTRIES, INC.

4.87% SENIOR NOTE, SERIES A
DUE MAY 15, 2010

No. AR-| [Date] $ ] PPN: []

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, WATTS INDUSHS, INC. (herein called the "Company"), a corpamtrganized and
existing under the laws of the State of Delawarerrses to pay to [ ], or registered assigns, tirecjpal sum of $[ ] on May 15, 2010, with
interest (computed on the basis of a 360-day ykwvelve 30-day months) (a) on the unpaid balaheedof at the rate of 4.87% per annum
from the date hereof, payable semiannually, on ¥&agnd November 15, in each year, commencing Wwé&h\Vtay or November next
succeeding the date hereof, until the principaébeshall have become due and payable, and (btextent permitted by law on any over
payment (including any overdue prepayment) of ppaig any overdue payment of interest and any axemhyment of any Make-Whole
Amount (as defined in the Note Purchase Agreenedatned to below), payable semiannually as afode@ai at the option of the registered
holder hereof, on demand), at a rate per annum fimeto time equal to the greater of (i) 6.87%iQr2% over the rate of interest publicly
announced by Bank of America, or its successom ftime to time in Chicago, lllinois as its "base"'prime" rate.

Payments of principal of, interest on and any M#kesle Amount with respect to this Note are to balenia lawful money of the United
States of America at the principal office of Barfkdmnerica in Chicago, lllinois or at such other gdaas the Company shall have designated
by written notice to the holder of this Note asyided in the Note Purchase Agreement referred limbe

This Note is one of a series of Senior Notes (Imecelled the "Notes") issued pursuant to a Notelrase Agreement dated as of May 15,
2003 (as from time to time amended, the "Note PasetAgreement”), between the Company and the regp@&urchasers named therein and
is entitled to the benefits thereof. Each holdethaf Note will be deemed, by its acceptance hel@ab have agreed to the confidentiality
provisions set forth in

Section 20 of the Note Purchase Agreement antb(lijpve made the representations set forth in @e6t2 of the Note Purchase Agreement.

This Note is a registered Note and, as provideerNote Purchase Agreement, upon surrender oNtbtis for registration of transfer, duly
endorsed, or accompanied b



written instrument of transfer duly executed, by thgistered holder hereof or such holder's atyodady authorized in writing, a new Note

a like principal amount will be issued to, and s¢giied in the name of, the transferee. Prior topttesentment for registration of transfer, the
Company may treat the person in whose name this Natgistered as the owner hereof for the purpbseceiving payment and for all other
purposes, and the Company will not be affectedryyreotice to the contrary.

This Note is subject to optional prepayment, in lghar from time to time in part, at the times amdtbe terms specified in the Note Purchase
Agreement but not otherwise.

If an Event of Default, as defined in the Note Piase Agreement, occurs and is continuing, the ip@hof this Note may be declared or
otherwise become due and payable in the manntre atrice (including any applicable Make-Whole Amguand with the effect provided in
the Note Purchase Agreement.

This Note shall be construed and enforced in acsure with, and the rights of the parties shall tneegned by, the law of the Commonwealth
of Massachusetts excluding choice-of-law principdéthe law of such State that would require theligption of the laws of a jurisdiction
other than such State.

WATTSINDUSTRIES, INC.

By:

Name:
Title:



Exhibit 4.3
[FORM OF SERIESB SENIOR NOTE]
WATTSINDUSTRIES, INC.

5.47% SENIOR NOTE
SERIES B, DUE MAY 15, 2013

No. BR-[ | [Date] 3 ] PPN:[]

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, WATTS INDUSHS, INC. (herein called the "Company"), a corpamtrganized and
existing under the laws of the State of Delawarerrses to pay to [ ], or registered assigns, tircjpal sum of $[ ] on May 15, 2013, with
interest (computed on the basis of a 360-day ykwvedve 30-day months) (a) on the unpaid balaheedof at the rate of 5.47% per annum
from the date hereof, payable semiannually, on ¥&agnd November 15, in each year, commencing Wwé&h\Vtay or November next
succeeding the date hereof, until the principaébeshall have become due and payable, and (btextent permitted by law on any over
payment (including any overdue prepayment) of ppaig any overdue payment of interest and any axemhyment of any Make-Whole
Amount (as defined in the Note Purchase Agreenedatned to below), payable semiannually as afode@ai at the option of the registered
holder hereof, on demand), at a rate per annum fimeto time equal to the greater of (i) 7.47%iQr2% over the rate of interest publicly
announced by Bank of America, or its successom ftime to time in Chicago, lllinois as its "base"'prime" rate.

Payments of principal of, interest on and any M#kesle Amount with respect to this Note are to balenia lawful money of the United
States of America at the principal office of Barfkdmnerica in Chicago, lllinois or at such other gdaas the Company shall have designated
by written notice to the holder of this Note asyided in the Note Purchase Agreement referred limbe

This Note is one of a series of Senior Notes (Imecelled the "Notes") issued pursuant to a Notelrase Agreement dated as of May 15,
2003 (as from time to time amended, the "Note PasetAgreement”), between the Company and the regp@&urchasers named therein and
is entitled to the benefits thereof. Referenceaslento the Note Purchase Agreement for the defirstused herein and the method of
calculating the interest and other payments to &damn or in respect of this Note. Each holdehisflote will be deemed, by its acceptance
hereof, (i) to have agreed to the confidentialitgyisions set forth in Section 20 of the Note PasghAgreement and (ii) to have made the
representations and agreement set forth in Se6tnof the Note Purchase Agreem



This Note is a registered Note and, as providdtienrNote Purchase Agreement, upon surrender oNibtis for registration of transfer, duly
endorsed, or accompanied by a written instrumetraofifer duly executed, by the registered holéeedf or such holder's attorney duly
authorized in writing, a new Note for a like pripal amount will be issued to, and registered inndme of, the transferee. Prior to due
presentment for registration of transfer, the Comypaay treat the person in whose name this Nategistered as the owner hereof for the
purpose of receiving payment and for all other psgs, and the Company will not be affected by atica to the contrary.

This Note is subject to optional prepayment, in lghar from time to time in part, at the times amdtbe terms specified in the Note Purchase
Agreement but not otherwise.

If an Event of Default, as defined in the Note Piage Agreement, occurs and is continuing, the ipdhof this Note may be declared or
otherwise become due and payable in the manntre atrice (including any applicable Make-Whole Amguand with the effect provided in
the Note Purchase Agreement.

This Note shall be construed and enforced in acsure with, and the rights of the parties shall tneegned by, the law of the Commonwealth
of Massachusetts excluding choice-of-law principdéthe law of such State that would require thgligption of the laws of a jurisdiction
other than such State.

WATTSINDUSTRIES, INC.

By:

Name:
Title:



Exhibit 99.1
For Immediate Release

Contact: William C. McCartney
Chief Financial Officer
(978) 688-1811

WATTSINDUSTRIESCOMPLETES $125 MILLION SENIOR NOTESPRIVATE PLACEMENT

NORTH ANDOVER, MA--May 15, 2003--Watts Industries, Inc. (NYSE: WTnounced today that it has completed a privatseptant of
$125 million of senior unsecured notes consistin§5® million principal amount of 4.87% Senior Netue 2010 and $75 million principal
amount of 5.47% Senior Notes due 2013.

The net proceeds from the private placement willded to repay in full the company's $75 milliompipal amount of 8 3/8% Notes due
December 2003 and to repay approximately $30 milliotstanding under the company's senior crediitfaclhe balance of the net proceeds
will be used for general corporate purposes.

The Notes were offered and sold only to institugidnvestors. The Notes have not been registerddrhe Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, or any state securities laws, and magenotfered or sold in the United States absenstegion or an applicable exemption from
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and afigiicstate securities laws, except under circumstandere neither such registration nor
such an exemption is required by law.

This press release does not constitute an offeelt@r the solicitation of an offer to buy any sety.

Watts Industries is a world leader in the manufiectf valves and other products to control thecefficy, safety, and quality of water within
residential, commercial, and institutional applicas. Its expertise in a wide variety of water tealogies enables it to be a comprehensive
supplier to the Water Industry.

This Press Release may include statements whiamodt@storical facts and are considered forwaakiog within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Theseward-looking statements reflect Watts Industriestent views about its future results of
operations and other forward-looking informatiorauyshould not rely on forward-looking statementsause Watts' actual results may differ
materially from those indicated by these forwardking statements as a result of a number of impobfétors. These factors include, but are
not limited to, the following: loss of market shaheough competition, introduction of competing gwots by other companies, pressure on
prices from competitors, suppliers, and/or cust@ykailure or delay in developing new productsklatacceptance of new products, failure
to manufacture products that meet required perfoomand safety standards, foreign exchange fluonstcyclicality of industries, such as
plumbing and heating wholesalers and home imprownématailers, in which Watts markets certain ofpiteducts, reductions in the supply of
raw materials, increases in the prices of raw nagreconomic factors, such as



levels of housing starts and remodeling, impactivggmarkets where Watts' products are sold, maturtsd, or marketed, environmental
compliance costs, product liability risks, the fesand timing of Watts' manufacturing restructgrpian, changes in the status of current
litigation, including the James Jones case, andratbks and uncertainties discussed under theitga@ertain Factors Affecting Future
Results" in Watts' Annual Report on Form 10-K foe {/ear ended December 31, 2002 filed with the i@=IExchange Commission and
other reports Watts files from time to time witket8ecurities and Exchange Commission. Watts dagstend to and undertakes no duty to
update the information contained in this Press &sgle

End of Filing
Pewerad By EDGAR

ALk

© 2005 | EDGAR Online, Inc.



